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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Capacity Development and Financing to Migrant Workers

Detail of Expenditure (FY-2077/78)

Heading
HR_EXPENSES
Salary- AO Staffs
Salary- PC
Salary- Parash
Salary- Mahindra
Salary-Omprakash
Recruitment Expenses
Induction Training
Insurance
OTHERS_OPERATING
Office Expenses
Travel Expenses (SEP)
Travel Expenses (SKBBL)
Orientation Training of SFACLs
Oprating Support to SFACLs
Progress Review
Special Support to SFACLs
Baseline Survey of Migrants
Promotional Expenses by SFACLs
PROGRAMME_SPECIFIC_COST
New Product Development
ToT on Financial Literacy
Software Development
TOT on Enterprise Development
ED Training
Financial Literacy Training
BP Dev. Training
JTA & JTL Training

ASSETS_PROCUREMENT
Procurement of Laptops

Procurement of Bikes

M_N_E

Monitoring from SKBBL
Monitoring from SFACLs
TOTAL BUDGET/EXPENSES

Improved Livestock Management Training
Improved Farm Management Training

Improved Makreting Management Training

Procurement of Office Equipements

SEP
25,91,938.10
17,34,927.93
2,96,666.67
1,61,250.00
1,68,333.50
1,67,500.00
53,870.50
31,269.50
8,120.00
5,25,458.42
3,057.50
16,347.50
2,56,053.42

2,50,000.00
45,000.00
45,000.00

9,75,199.50
1,82,000.00
3,39,652.00
4,53,547.50

41,37,596.02

SKBBL
17,43,047.93
17,34,927.93

8,120.00
19,405.00
3,057.50
16,347.50

9,75,199.50
1,82,000.00
3,39,652.00
4,53,547.50

27,37,652.43

GoN
8,48,890.17
2,96,666.67
1,51,250.00
1,58,333.50
1,57,500.00
53,870.50
31,269.50
5,06,053.42
2,56,053.42
2,50,000.00
45,000.00
45,000.00

13,99,943.59

Grand Total
51,83,876.20
34,69,855.86
5,93,333.34
3,02,500.00
3,16,667.00
3,15,000.00
1,07,741.00
62,539.00
16,240.00
10,50,916.84
6,115.00
32,695.00
5,12,106.84

5,00,000.00
90,000.00
90,000.00

19,50,399.00
3,64,000.00
6,79,304.00
9,07,095.00

82,75,192.04
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DIGITIZATION OF SFACLS AND EXPANSION OF ACCESS TO FINACNE IN KARNALI
PROVINCE (DSFACLs & A2F) PROJECT

Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Expenses by Parties

FY 2077/78

Last FY Current FY

Sakchyam SI;aBErl;ear:d Sakchyam SgaBil:earzd
Opening Balance b/d 13,84,420.89 13,84,420.89
A | Grant/Matching Fund received | 9,64,38,901.11| 4,88,79,665.91|4,75,59,235.20| 66,99,462.99| 26,35,241.70| 40,64,221.29
B.1 | Human Resource 1,35,11,006.76 67,87,498.47 67,23,508.29 56,90,952.14 28,45,476.07| 28,45,476.07
B.2 | Product Design 3,49,180.10 1,74,590.05 1,74,590.05 - -
B.3 | Financial Literacy 16,15,011.24 8,07,505.62 8,07,505.62 - -
B.4 | Software Design 68,74,425.24 34,37,212.62 34,37,212.62 - -
B.5 | Monitoring and Evaluation 1,43,360.00 71,680.00 71,680.00 91,095.00 45,547.50 45,547.50
B.6 | Client Member Support 4211,078.20 21,05,539.10 21,05,539.10 - -
B.7 | Capability Enhancement 90,59,999.12 45,29,999.56 45,29,999.56 - -
B.8 | Others 5,91,90,545.56| 2,95,31,282.60| 2,9595,272.79 23,46,395.45 11,73,197.73 11,73,197.72
B.9 | Assets 99,874.00 49,937.00 49,937.00 - -
Total Expenses 9,50,54,480.22| 4,74,95,245.02| 4,74,95,245.03| 81,28,442.59| 40,64,221.30| 40,64,221.29
Surplus/(Deficit) 13,84,420.89 - (44,558.71) (44,558.71)
ggg;se/r:t[)eficit) as per Bank 13.84,420.89 . ) )
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SANA KISHAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA
LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sana Kishan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited which comprises Balance Sheet as at Ashad 31, 2078, Profit or loss account, Cash
Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. These statements have been prepared as per

the formats and following the accounting policies and estimates prescribed by Unified Directives 4
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

In our opinion and based on the information and clarification received, the accompanied financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the financial status as of Ashadh 31, 2078 its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Limitation on use of Financial Statements

Financial Statements are prepared as per Unified Directives 4 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.
Therefore, these Statements may not be suitable for general purpose as per the requirement of Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard. We have not modified our opinion on account of this.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Unified Directive 4 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to Micro Finance Institutions, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we further report that:

1) We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

2) The financial statements which include statement of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2078, the
statement of profit or loss, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the year
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then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements are
prepared in all material respect as per the procedure and format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank
and in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company and proper books of
account as required by the law have been kept.

3) The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of assets of the
Company are adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

4) The returns received from the branch offices of the Company, though all the statements are
independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit.

5) We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of
directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions
of law or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any misappropriation of its funds.

6) To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our
audit, we observed that the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the
Company’s transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority.

Other Matters

As per Nepal Rastra Bank Directives, Microfinance Companies dealing in wholesale lending and
taking deposits from general public should prepare its annual financial statement as per Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) in parallel with existing directives for the year ending on
Ashadh 31, 2078. Therefore, the Company has also prepared the financial statement as per NFRS for
the year ending on Ashadh 31, 2078, we have issued our report on the same separately on the same
date.

CA. Khagengzg

For Khagendra & Associates

Chartered Accountants Date: November 24, 2021
UDIN:211126CA00138jFRnQ Place: Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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As of Asadh end 2078

Particulars No. of Amount
Customers (NRs.)

Accrued Interest Received after Asadh end 2078 till 15 Bhadra 2078 NA NA
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio NA 7,30,97,908.41
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project under construction NA NA
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision NA NA
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers NA NA
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers NA NA
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID Loan) extended for upto 1 year with 5% NA NA
provisioning

Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) extended for upto 1 year with 5% provisioning NA NA
Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for upto two years as per clause 41 of NA NA
NRB Directives 2

gd |, R

As of Asadh end 2078

Particulars

No. of Customers Amount (NRs.)
Refinance Loan NA NA
Business Continuity Loan | NA | NA
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As of Asadh end 2078
Particulars

No. of Customers | Amount (NRs.)

Subsidized Loan NA NA

(@) TEF YW HTAE HIHS FHYaTE HET TUHAE 78 T8 T

00 FHR HATTAFTHT HIHSH HRUT T AUHT T (i AXAThT FRIERHAT ATag AIHER TeFRIF e TaH qaedH
IRaR FEEHET AT (AT AU qiqeafehat AT 3. 90 ERET 3ol T [axiiy FLITH YTEeh W& HuATe JUed RIS
AT TRURT T Ih LALATHT I~ TBFRIEEA ATHT &TAAT ATHARPT THH 99 TR ITAd TRI3T Febl FTIT HURHT TH
foeirg EaTaTe % [Ha™ 9UHr (00q Afda dRT 3. 9,00,90,000/ - (TF FRIE 39 FAR) AN I TRIEUH G |

qE. TG AT qT S IR faaruT TwewmT

facirr TeaTeht fafq 095/ 05/ 0 AT FTHFT FodTaF ATHITR! TSHF A4, 089/ 95 HT FATHIATE =hT Toilel Y TTqeTae g
T 39,35,5R,9%% /43 SRTEARH! AME AT T A SARHT F FATSTAS] ATRT =hT Ioilebl .34 95 ¥\9% GIqerder g 78 AT
T 9,59 S9U9R/4R T B TFAT B, 3,83 %0,jUG/ ¥¥ ATATH] HATHT [adqw0r T UF G R S\ $7A% [T TaT AT =Ta7
AT HAFATS ANTHT THEEHT FHI: YU TCGFT GEaiead & ATHH] Fral TeT Aawdy afed TEqeH AT T9d T I 2
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Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statement
As of FY 2077/78

Particlars

As per
Unaudited
Financial
Statement

As per

Audited
Financial
Statement

Variance

In Amount

Rs. In'000

Reasons for Variance

1.1
1.2

1.3
1.4
1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1
2.2

2.3
24

2.5

Total Capital and Liabilities
(1.1 to 1.7)

Paid-up Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Debenture and Bond
Borrowings
Deposits (a+b)

a. Member

b. Public

Income Tax Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Assets (2.1 to 2.7)
Cash & Bank Balance

Money at call and short
Notice

Investments

Loans & Advances

Fixed Assets

26,789,237.51

1,251,530.98
2,326,225.13

20,317,990.63

2,893,490.76

26,789,237.51
1,092,292.43
890,150.20

136,850.30
24,536,974.14

25,640.00

26,119,995.70

1,564,413.73
1,959,245.19

20,316,793.69

2,279,543.09

26,119,995.69
385,127.49
1,697,782.43

136,849.20
23,882,445.62

24,220.82

669,241.81

(312,883)
366,979.94

1,196.94

613,947.67

669,241.82
707,164.94
(707,632.23)

1
654,529

1,419.18

2.50

-25.00
15.78

0.01

21.22

2.50
64.74
(79.50)

0.00
2.67

5.54

Due to Proposed Bonus Share

Adjusted due to appropriation of Rs.
30,702.54 thousand in Staff welfare
fund, Proposed Bonus Share and
Dividend & other adjustments in
profit

Adjustment on reconciliation

Adjustment for netting off loan loss
provision and with other assets, etc.

Adjustment on reconciliation

Adjustment on reconciliation

Adjustment on audit review, netting
off loan loss provision

Adjustment on audit review

wmmaqﬁﬂﬁmmm@
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2.6
2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

34
3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

31

3.12
3.13

Non Banking Assets

Other Assets

Profit and Loss Account

Interest Income

Interest Expenses

A. Net Interest Income
(3.1-3.2)

Fees, Commission and
Discount

Other Operating Income
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss
(Net)

B. Total Operating Income
(A+3.3+3.4+3.5)

Staff Expenses

Other Operating Expenses

C. Operating Profit Before
Provision (B-3.6-3.7)

Provision for Possible
Losses

D. Operating Profit (C-3.8)
Non Operating
Income/Expenses (Net)

Write Back of Provision for
Possible Loss

E. Profit from Regular
Activities (D+3.9+3.10)

Extraordinary
Income/Expenses (Net)

F. Profit Before Bonus and
Taxes (E+3.11)

Provision for Staff Bonus
Provision for Tax

G. Net Profit/(Loss) (F-

3.12-3.13)

107,330.43

1,889,645.74

672,717.80

1,216,927.95

223.45

1,217,151.40

78,874.79

56,114.20

1,082,162.41

308,085.47

774,076.94
1,312.87

200,785.12

976,174.93

976,174.93

97,617.49
263,567.23
614,990.20

93,570.13

1,890,552.88

671,811.72

1,218,741.16

277.95

1,219,019.11

80,130.12

55,754.61

1,083,134.38

315,773.00

767,361.38
1,295.82

210,057.01

978,714.20

978,714.20

97,871.42
268,402.59
612,440.19

13,760.30

(907.14)

906.08

(1,813.21)

(54.50)

(1,867.71)
(1,255.33)

359.59

(971.97)
(7,687.54)

6,715.56
17.06

(9,271.89)

(2,539.27)

(2,539.27)

(253.93)
(4,835.36)
2,550.01

12.82

(0.05)

0.13

(0.15)

-24.39

(0.15)
(1.59)

0.64

(0.09)
-2.50

0.87

-4.62

(0.26)

(0.26)

(0.26)
(1.83)
0.41

Adjustment for Deferred Tax Assets,
Income Tax,etc. and netting with
other liabilities.

Adjustment after finalization of
Bank reconciliation

Adjustment after finalization of
Bank reconciliation

Adjustment on reconciliation

Regrouping with operating
expenses

Regrouping with staff expenses &
adjustment for missed expenses
and CSR Expenses

Adjustment on audit review

Regrouping with Other Operating
Income

Adjustment on audit review

for above mentioned adjustments
for above mentioned adjustments

Due to above changes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SANA KISHAN BIKAS LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA
SANSTHA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sana Kishan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited (Company), which comprise statement of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021), statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes

in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021), its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of the Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional judgment were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated to the shareholders.

Key Audit Matters Auditors Response

S.
N.
1 | Loan Loss Provision

Ref. Note number 4.7 and accounting policies to the
financial statements

As per NRB Unified Directive 04/2077, the Our audit approach regarding
Company shall measure impairment loss on loans | verification of impairment of loans

and advances at the higher of: and advances included:

a. Amount derived as per norms prescribed by | 2 Review of overdue status of loans
Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and and advances by obtaining data

be Amount deterciined a5 per pass 68 of NAS 99| [om the system and smatched
adopting Incurred Loss Model same with NRB 2.2 Report.
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As per the norms prescribed by NRB, provision at
prescribed rate should be created on loans and
advances based on overdue status on loans and
advances as well as utilization status of the facility,
status of collateral security, borrower’s whereabouts
etc.

As per NAS 39 read with NFRS 9, impairment of
loans and advances should be made on individual
impairment basis for loans and advances that are
individually significant and collective impairment
basis for homogeneous groups of loans that are not
considered individually significant. The impairment
of loans and advances under incurred loss model
require assessment of future cash flows as well as
historical loss experiences of portfolios.

Owing to above facts, the calculation of loan loss
provision is regarded as Key Audit Matters.

b. Sample credit files were
reviewed, among other things,
from the perspective of utilization
of loans and advances for
intended purpose by way of
scrutiny of financial statements,
account movement etc.

c. Grouping of homogeneous group
of loans was assessed on the basis
of nature and purposes of loans
and data of historical loss
experience in portfolios are
assessed on the basis of past due
data from the system as well as
data of loan loss provisions of the
defined group in the past.

COVID 19 First and Second Wave Impact

The pandemic of COVID 19 has impacted
profitability of the Company and its borrowers.
Further, directives, notices and circulars issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank granted relaxation on payment of
interest and repayment of loan to Covid Impacted
Borrowers and also required additional impairment
charge for pass loans and advances which has
significantly impacted financial performance of the
Company, accordingly we considered this as Key
Audit Matter.

We applied following procedures in
respect of Covid 19 impact
verification:

a. Verification of additional loan
loss provision required as per
NRB circulars for those borrowers
who were categorized as pass
loan.

b. Compliances regulatory
requirements regarding
relaxation to impacted borrowers.

of

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report and Report of Board of Directors, but not included in the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and
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using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statement of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
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regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our audit report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to overweight the public interest benefits of
such communications.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we further report that:

1)

2)

4)

5)

6)

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

The financial statements which include statement of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2078, the
statement of profit or loss, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements
are prepared in all material respect as per the procedure and format prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank and in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company and proper
books of account as required by the law have been kept.

The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of assets of the
Company are adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

The returns received from the branch offices of the Company, though all the statements are
independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit.

We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of
directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the
provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any
misappropriation of its funds.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of
our audit, we observed that the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the
Company’s transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority.

CA. Khagendra
For Khagendra & .. -
Chartered Accounts Date: November 24, 2021

UDIN: 211126CA00138GxEQz Place: Baneshwor, Kathmandu
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashad 2078

Particular

Cash & Cash Equivalent
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions
Derivative Financial Instruments
Other Trading Assets
Loan and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives
Loan & advances to customers
Investment Securities
Current Tax Assets
Investment Property
Property and Equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Due to Bank & Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative Financial Instrument
Deposits from Customers
Borrowing
Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Other liabilities
Debt Securities Issued
Subordinated Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital
Share Premium
Retained Earnings
Reserves
Total Equity
Total Liabilities & Equity

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Net assets value per share

Notes

41
4.2
4.3
4.4
45
4.6
4.7
4.8
49
410
411
412
413
414

415
416
417
418
419
4.9
4.20
413
4.21
4.22
4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

31st Ashad 2078

1,858,949,877.82
123,960,046.37

23,882,445,622.21
32,042,601.54
141,424,161.00
9,266,844.92
17,712,750.46
1,002,671.60
21,380,694.99
38,443,621.98
26,126,628,893.16

7,103,166,638.53
120,526,835.32

13,093,100,221.06
2,288,716,861.41

22,605,510,556.32

1,251,630,982.08
18,269,713.60
789,071,158.63
1,462,246,482.53
3,521,118,336.84
26,126,628,893.16

281.34

31st Ashad 2077

Restated
2,448,639,756.02
121,380,526.37

20,823,480,671.65
27,755,028.96
891,5653,746.00
2,044,960.37
13,793,957.20
860,631.60
18,722,022.16
38,028,363.27
24,386,259,663.63

8,291,901,242.80
1,744,796.00

11,080,597,044.05
2,071,355,359.69

21,445,598,442.54

1,000,229,425.66

719,416,173.98
1,221,015,621.45
2,940,661,221.08
24,386,259,663.62

294.00

31st Ashad 2076
Restated

1,403,981,366.53
90,000,000.00

20,154,655,843.34
21,718,528.51
191,879,064.00
6,538,905.79
14,297,835.70
393,920.00
14,137,438.36
44,938,539.88
21,942,541,442.14

8,996,510,590.18
2,828,660.00

8,651,001,000.00
1,868,850,983.34

19,519,191,233.52

786,034,912.11

604,334,182.91
1,032,981,113.60
2,423,350,208.62
21,942,541,442.14

308.30

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal Dr. Nav Raj Simkhada

Dr. Shiv Ram Prasad Koirala

Khem Bahadur Pathak

As per our report of even date

CA. Khagendra Bhattarai

Senior Manager Deputy CEO CEO Chairman For Khagendra & Associates
Finance & HR Division Chartered Accountants
Umesh Lamsal Rabindra Yadav Bhupesh Chhatkuli Pratap Subedi Chadani Dhakal Mahendra Prasad Shrestha

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2078/08/08
Place: Kathmandu
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2077 to 31st Ashad 2078

Particular Notes
Interest Income 4.27
Interest Expense 4.28
Net Interest Income
Fees & Commission Income 4.29
Fees & Commission Expense 4.30
Net Fee & Commission Income
Net Interest, Fee & Commission Income
Net Trading Income 4.31
Other Operating Income 4.32
Total Operating Income
Impairment (Charge)/ reversal for loans & other losses 4.33
Net Operating Income
Personnel Expenses 4.34
Other Operating expenses 4.35
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36
Operating Profit
Non Operating Income 4.37
Non Operating Expense 4.38
Profit before Income Tax
Income Tax Expense 4.39
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit for the year
Profit attribute to:
Equity holder of the Financial Institution
Profit for the year
Earnings per share
Basis EPS
Diluted EPS

31st Ashad 2078
1,889,138,949.73
(671,811,716.83)
1,217,327,232.90

1,217,327,232.90
423,242.79
1,217,750,475.69
(105,715,993.50)
1,112,034,482.19
(187,496,857.03)
(50,357,130.04)
(6,641,242.98)
867,539,252.14
1,008,414.34
868,542,666.47
(265,430,824.28)
(270,406,162.50)
4,975,338.23
603,111,842.20

603,111,842.20
603,111,842.20

48.19
48.19

31st Ashad 2077 Restated

2,267,999,466.00
(1,124,543,452.78)
1,143,456,013.22

1,143,456,013.22
661,710.54
1,144,117,723.76
(123,533,681.97)
1,020,584,041.79
(169,785,390.26)
(47,134,088.21)
(5,753,348.15)
797,911,215.17
721,807.29
798,633,022.46
(239,484,682.74)
(242,606,075.04)
3,121,392.30
559,148,339.72

559,148,339.72
559,148,339.72

55.90
55.90

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

CA. Mandipa Dahal Dr. Nav Raj Simkhada Dr. Shiv Ram Prasad Koirala

Khem Bahadur Pathak

As per our report of even date

CA. Khagendra Bhattarai

Senior Manager Deputy CEO CEO Chairman For Khagendra & Associates
Finance & HR Division Chartered Accountants
Umesh Lamsal Rabindra Yadav Bhupesh Chhatkuli Pratap Subedi Chadani Dhakal Mahendra Prasad Shrestha

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2078/08/08
Place: Kathmandu
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2077 to 31st Ashad 2078

Particular Notes | 31st Ashad 2078 | 31st Ashad 2077 Restated

Net profit for the year 603,111,842.20 559,148,339.72
Other comprehensive income

a) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value 4192,415.00 (325,318.00)

Gains/(losses) on Revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 3,529,803.00 (4,551,987.00)
Income tax relating to above items (2,316,665.40) 1,463,191.50
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 5,405,552.60 (3,414,113.50)

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items
Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 5,405,552.60 (3,414,113.50)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 608,517,394.80 555,734,226.22
Total comprehensive income for the period 608,517,394.80 555,734,226.22

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements As per our report of even date

CA. Mandipa Dahal Dr. Nav Raj Simkhada Dr. Shiv Ram Prasad Koirala Khem Bahadur Pathak CA. Khagendra Bhattarai

Senior Manager Deputy CEO CEO Chairman For Khagendra & Associates
Finance & HR Division Chartered Accountants
Umesh Lamsal Rabindra Yadav Bhupesh Chhatkuli Pratap Subedi Chadani Dhakal Mahendra Prasad Shrestha

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2078/08/08
Place: Kathmandu
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2077 to 31st Ashad 2078

Particular
Cash flow from operating activities
Interest received
Fees and other income received
Divided received
Receipts from other operating activities
Interest paid
Commission and fees paid
Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposit from customers
Borrowings
Other liabilities
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of investment securities
Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties
Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received
Dividend received
Net cash flow from Investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities
Receipt from issue of shares
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Other receipt/payment
Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2077
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2078

31st Ashad 2078

1,816,300,497.06

277,954.35
(671,811,716.83)

(73,166,831.88)
(166,479,004.34)
905,120,898.36
(2,473,026,581.79)

699,152,393.81

(3,164,680,944.06)
8,836,213.50
(16,334,245.04)
1,135,485,997.52
(1,188,734,604.27)
118,782,039.32

2,012,503,177.01
192,935,385.46
(432,419,685.91)
(277,669,067.45)
(710,088,753.36)

754,322,000.00
(10,041,044.98)

(113,000.00)

74,252,381.69
145,288.44
818,565,625.15

1,244,200.00

2,320,963.82
3,565,163.82
112,042,035.61
273,085,453.89

385,127,489.50

31st Ashad 2077 Restated

2,172,237,266.80

695,710.54
(1,124,5643,452.78)

(70,008,278.15)
(142,048,949.12)
836,332,297.29
(1,889,605,222.90)

(977,023,856.95)

(915,233,064.22)
5,618,965.36
(2,967,267.09)
1,890,003,909.17
(704,609,347.38)
(1,083,864.00)

2,429,596,044.05
166,101,076.50
836,730,983.56
(238,112,129.62)
598,618,853.94

(700,000,000.00)

(5,113,177.58)

92,509,962.35

(612,603,215.23)

112,999,419.77
112,999,419.77
99,015,058.48
174,070,394.98

273,085,453.89

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

CA. Mandipa Dahal Dr. Nav Raj Simkhada Dr. Shiv Ram Prasad Koirala Khem Bahadur Pathak CA. Khagendra Bhattarai
Senior Manager Deputy CEO CEO Chairman For Khagendra & Associates

Finance & HR Division Chartered Accountants

Umesh Lamsal Rabindra Yadav Bhupesh Chhatkuli Pratap Subedi

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Chadani Dhakal Mahendra Prasad Shrestha

Date: 2078/08/08
Place: Kathmandu
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For the period from 1st Shrawan 2077 to 31st Ashad 2078

(As Per NRB Regulation)

Particular

Net Profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss
Appropriations:
a. General Reserve
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate Social Responsibility fund
e. Employees Traning Fund
f. Client Protection fund
j. Other

Staff Welfare Fund

RSRF Loan Loss Provision Reserve

Institutional Strengthening Fund

Reconstruction Fund

Refund From CSR
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment
Regulatory adjustment
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
J.Profit Brought Forward From Previous Period
k. Previous year’s declared dividend distributed this year (Share + Cash)

Distributable Profit or Loss

31st Ashad 2078
603,111,842.20

(162,010,071.15)

(6,124,402.01)

(25,885,417.51)

(30,622,010.03
(9,271,892.62
(29,234,200.55
(18,373,206.02
10,239,726.23
331,830,368.54

)
)
)
)

1,230,696.77

(2,658,672.83)

2,470,862.10
719,416,173.98
(263,218,269.92)
789,071,158.63

31st Ashad 2077 Restated

559,148,339.72

(111,243,570.90)

(21,355,274.74)

(21,355,274.74)

(27,810,892.73)

(12,911,235.97)
(16,686,535.64)
2,060,000.00
349,845,555.00

(1,5624,680.23)

(4,584,583.80)

(3,186,390.90)
604,334,182.91
(225,467,909.00)
719,416,173.98

Accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements
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Senior Manager
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31st Ashadh 2078 (15th July, 2021)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited (SKBBL / Microfinance/ the Company) was
registered at Office of Company Registrar as Public
Limited Company on 2058/03/22 with registration
number of 105635/057/058. Sana Kisan Bikas
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (SKBBL) or “the
Microfinance” or “the Company”) obtained license
from Nepal Rastra Bank as ‘D’ class national level
financial institution for working as a major wholesale
lending microfinance institution. SKBBL provides
wholesale credit and technical support services to
Small Farmers Cooperatives (SFACLs) and other
cooperatives. It provides various development
programs to ensure access to microfinance services
for the poor and small farmers across the country.

SKBBL operates its business from its corporate office
at Babarmahal, Kathmandu. It has 11 area offices
spread across Nepal. The Microfinance is listed in
Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code
SKBBL.

Authorized capital and Issued Capital of SKBBL is
NPR 1,251,530,982.08 (Shares of NPR 100 each) and
Paid-up capital is also NPR 1,251,530,982.08 (shares
of NPR 100 each). The shareholder composition of
the microfinance (as of 2078-03-31) is presented in
Note 4.24.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

@wmmmﬁamw%.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented including the presentation
of the Opening NFRS Statement of Financial Position
as at 31st Ashad 2076 unless specified.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown in
two separate statements, the Statement of Changes
in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes
to the Accounts. The significant accounting policies

2.1

applied in the preparation of financial statements are
set out below in point number 3. These policies are
consistently applied to all the years presented, except
for the changes in accounting policies disclosed
specifically.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with Nepal Financial
Standards (NFRS) as adopted by the Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) - Nepal. The financial

statements have been prepared on the going

Reporting

concern basis.

These financial statements for the year ended 31
Asadh, 2078 are the first time the company has
prepared its financial statements under NFRS. For
all periods upto and including the year ended 31
Asadh, 2077, the company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with earlier issued Nepal
Accounting Standards and Nepal Rastra Bank’s
Directives to D Class Microfinances (hereinafter
referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory
reporting requirement in Nepal immediately before
adopting NFRS. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 Asadh 2077 and the Opening Statement of
Financial Position as at 31st Ashad 2076 have been
restated in accordance with NFRS for comparative
information. Reconciliations and explanations of the
effect of the transition from Previous GAAP to NFRS
on the company’s Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Total
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in
Note 5.

The financial statement comprises the Statement
of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Total
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement

Statement  of Comprehensive  Income,
of Cash Flows and Notes comprising summary of
significant accounting policy and other explanatory

notes. The significant accounting policies applied

in the preparation of financial statements are set




2.2

out below in point number 3. These policies are
consistently applied to all the years presented,
except for the changes in accounting policies
disclosed specifically. SKBBL presents its statement
of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, an
analysis regarding recovery or settlement within
twelve months after the reporting date (current) and
more than twelve months after the reporting date
(non-current) is presented in the respective notes.

Reporting Period and Approval of financial
statements

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of
Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of
Ashadh (mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese
calendar.

The current year period refers to 1% Shrawan 2077
to 31 Ashadh 2078 as per Nepalese Calendar
corresponding to 16" July 2020 to 15" July 2021 as
per English Calendar and corresponding previous
year period is 1t Shrawan 2076 to 31t Ashadh 2077
as per Nepalese Calendar corresponding to 17" July
2019 to 15™ July 2020 as per English Calendar.

Nepalese English
Calendar Calendar
Date/ Period | Date/ Period

Relevant Financial

Statement

Opening NFRS SFP* date 2076/03/31 16-Jul-2019
Previous year SFP date 2077/03/31 15-Jul-2020
Previous year reporting period 2076/04/01 17-Jul-2019
-2077/038/31 | - 15-Jul-2020
First NFRS SFP date 2078/03/31 15-Jul-2021
First NFRS reporting period 2077/04/01 16-Jul-2020
-2078/03/31 | - 15-Jul-2021

Accompanied financial statements have been adopted by

the Board of Directors on its meeting no 426 and have

been recommended for approval by shareholders in the

Annual General Meeting. SKBBL prepared its financial

statements in accordance with the requirements of Nepal

Financial Reporting Standards.

2.3

2.4

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese
Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest paisa unless
otherwise stated), which is the company’s functional
currency. SKBBL determines the functional currency
and items included in the financial statements are
measured using that functional currency.

Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of SKBBLs financial statements

2.5

2.6
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requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonable
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis.

Information about assumptions, estimates and
judgement used in preparation of financial statements
for 2077/78 that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment within the next financial year

are:

° Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow
projections.

e  Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

e  Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

e  Determination of net realizable value.

e Determination of useful life of the property,
plants and equipment.

e Assessment of SKBBLs ability to continue as
going concern.

e Determination of fair value of financial
instruments; and property and equipment.

e Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

e  Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.

Changes in Accounting policies

SKBBL has consistently applied the accounting
policies to all periods presented in these financial
statements except for new or revised statements and
interpretations implemented during the year. The
nature and effect of new standards and interpretations
are discussed in note that follows.

New reporting standards in issue but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
the existing standards and interpretations have
been issued by IASB- after the pronouncements of
NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them
within NFRS. The standards and interpretations
that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date
of issuance of SKBBLs financial statements are
disclosed below. SKBBL intends to adopt these

standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

NFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, NFRS 15

wmmaqﬁﬂﬁmmm@
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Revenue from Contracts with Customers, NFRS 16
Leases has been issued but is not effective until
current period.

2.7 New Standard and Interpretation not adopted

The financial statement is prepared in compliance
with all the standards that are issued and adopted by
Accounting Standard Board of Nepal except NFRS 9
in respect of Expected Credit Loss Model.

2.8 Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and
liabilities are non-current where the impact of the

discounting is material.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied by SKBBL
in the preparation of these financial statements
are presented below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the
historical-cost basis except for the required material
items in the statement of financial position where
it has been disclosed as measured at fair value or
otherwise.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. The estimates and judgements
used in the preparation of the financial statements
are continuously evaluated by SKBBL. Any revision to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively
in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in the future periods. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in notes that

follow.
3.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of Cash and Cash Equivalents is
the carrying amount. Cash and Cash Equivalents
represent the amount of cash in hand, balances
with other bank and financial institutions, money at
short notice and highly liquid financial assets with

original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in their value and used by SKBBL in

the management of short-term commitment.
3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or
a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. SKBBL initially recognize
loans and advances and debt securities/ subordinated
liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which
is the date that the microfinance becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments
in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government
securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos,
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which
SKBBL commits to purchase/ acquire the financial
assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets
are recognized on trade date. All financial assets and
liabilities are initially recognized at their cost value and
are subsequently presented as per NFRS based on the
respective classification.

Classification
i. Financial Assets

The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as
subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value on the basis of the Microfinance’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. The two classes of financial assets are as

follows:
1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance classifies a financial asset
measured at amortized cost if both of the following

conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at




amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial
assets measured at fair value are further classified
into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs are directly attributable to
the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair value

are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not
held for trading and at the initial recognition,
the
election that the subsequent changes in fair

Microfinance makes an irrevocable
value of the instrument is to be recognized in
other comprehensive income are classified
as financial assets at fair value though other
Such assets are

comprehensive income.

subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
i.  Financial Liabilities
The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as

follows:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs are directly attributable to the
acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit
or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair
value is recognized at profit or loss

b)  Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at
fair value though profit or loss are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest method.

Qo’"mmmuﬁaaa i@
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Measurement
Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Microfinance can make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis)
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity
instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments
are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e |t is a derivative that is not designated and effective

as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
Microfinance’s right to receive the dividends is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are
included in the ‘Net Trading Income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at
FVTPL, unless the Microfinance irrevocably elects on
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income for investments in
equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost
criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the
amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria
or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a

whaﬁmaqﬁaﬁﬁaﬁwh@
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measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing

the gains and losses on them on different bases.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is held for trading or is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

e the financial liability forms part of a company of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the Company is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in

accordance with NFRS 9

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized
in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates
any interest paid on the financial liability.

However, for non-held-fortrading financial liabilities that
are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’'s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case
these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of
change in the fair value of liability is always recognized

in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected
immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized
cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not
designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortized cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the

‘Interest Expenses’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired or where
the Microfinance has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks and
rewards have been neitherretained nor transferred and the
Microfinance has retained control, the assets continue
to be recognized to the extent of the Microfinance’s

continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are
extinguished. A financial liability is extinguished when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which SKBBL has access
at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial
instruments valued using models where all significant

inputs are observable.




Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable
inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on
observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument
at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e.
the fair value of the consideration given or received. If
the Microfinance determines that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the
fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01
valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets (Level 02 valuation),
then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or
loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument
but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported
by observable market data or the transaction is closed
out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price
in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level
01 valuation), the difference between the transaction price
and fair value is recognized in profit or loss immediately.

Impairment

Ateach reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on
the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated
reliably.

Obijective evidence that financial assets are impaired can
include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring
of a loan or advance by SKBBL on terms that SKBBL
would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower
or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an
active market for a security, or other observable data
relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in
the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group,
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the
group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security,
a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its
cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, SKBBL
considers to restructure loans. This may involve extending

Qo’"mmmuﬁaaa 7
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the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any
impairment is measured using the EIR method and the
loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that
all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to
occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual
or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the
loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized
cost

The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for
loans and advances measured at amortized cost at both
specific asset and collective level. SKBBL first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant
and that are not individually significant are assessed on
collectively.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

All individually significant loans and advances; measured
at amortized cost found not to be specifically impaired and
those that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and
advances with similar risk characteristics.

All individually significant loans and advances are
assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has incurred but not yet identified. Loans
and advances that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together

loans and advances with similar risk characteristics.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based
on the judgments in past experience of portfolio behavior.
In assessing collective impairment, the Microfinance uses
historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are

likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical

whaﬁmaqﬁaﬁﬁaﬁwh@
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trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing
of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against
actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost
are calculated as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred
to the Microfinance. If in a subsequent year, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized
in the ‘Net Operating Income’.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified
as fair value though other comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an
equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline
in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are
recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the
fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative
loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any
principal repayment and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.

34 Trading Asset

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held
for trading) if they have been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are
recognized on trade date, when the bank enters into
contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are
normally derecognized when sold. They are initially
measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to
profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are
recognized in profit or loss.

3.5 Property and Equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the assets

will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the asset can
be reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:

e  Cost of materials and direct labour;

e Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the
assets to the working condition for their intended
use; and

e  Capitalized borrowing cost

b) Depreciation-Rate applied is charged as per
NAS-16

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated from
the date they are available for use, on straight line
method over estimated useful lives as determined by the
Management. Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss.
Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the
date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or
is derecognized.

For assets purchased/sold during the year, depreciation
is provided up to the date of use on pro-rata basis.

Assets Useful Life

Computer & Accesssories 4 Years
Furnishing 4 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 4 Years
Office Equipment 4 Years
Plant & Machinery 7 Years
Other Assets 7 Years
Vehicle 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial
position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated
but continued to be in use is considered not material.

At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for
indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its
recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately

to the recoverable amount.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on
purchase as revenue expenditure.

Gains and losses on disposals are included in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.6 Goodwill Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired

separately are carried at cost less accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses.




Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives are amortized
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing
the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and
recognized as intangible assets based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to
flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible
assets for current year and comparative periods are as

follows:
Class of Assets Useful Life
Computer software 5 years

3.7 Investment Property:

Investment properties are land or building or both other
than those classified as property and equipment under
NAS 16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment’; and assets
classified as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS
5 - “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Land and Building acquired as non-banking
assets are recognized as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequently all investment
properties are reported at fair value with any gains or
losses in fair value reported in the statement of profit
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and loss as they arise. No depreciation is charged in
investment property as they are not intended for the

owner-occupied use.

3.8 Income Tax

The Microfinance is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income
taxes have been calculated as per the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 2058.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized

in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and
liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be
payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax
rate applicable to the Bank as at the reporting date which
is expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or
credited directly to equity, is credited or charged directly

to equity and is subsequently recognized in the statement
of profit or loss together with the deferred gain or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax

assets against current income tax liabilities and the
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deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

debt
subordinated liabilities

3.9 Deposits, securities issued and

Institution’s deposits consist of money placed into the
Institution by its customers. These deposits are made to
deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings
accounts, margin deposit accounts, call deposit accounts
and current accounts. Details and further disclosures
about deposits have been explained in Note that follows.
SKBBL has no deposits for the years presented.

3.10 Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Microfinance has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and when the amount
can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate
ofthe considerationrequired to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the

time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and

the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there
is:

- a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity; or

- present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognized because:

» It is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; or

» The amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments- Where the Microfinance has confirmed
its intention to provide funds to a customer or on
behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts,
future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the
Microfinance has not made payments at the reporting
date, those instruments are included in these financial

statements as commitments.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and

commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Microfinance
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the future obligations under the contract.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and
commission. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its
recoverability of income is not probable. The bases of

incomes recognition are as below:
Interest income

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using
effective interest method. Effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
and receipts through the expected life of financial asset
or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability.
The transaction costs include incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets.

Interest income presented in statement of profit or loss
includes Interest income on financial assets measured
at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest rate
method considering the cash flow throughout the period
of respective loan investment. These financial assets
include loans and advances including staff loans.

Interest income on loans and advances where contractual
payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12
months in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value
of collateral, are not recognized.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the
effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in
measurement of effective interest rate. SKBBL doesn'’t
charge any fees and commission, i.e. management fee,
prepayment Charge, penal Charges etc., on its Loans and

advances.




Where the estimates of cash flows have been revised,
the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability
is adjusted to reflect the actual and revised cash flows,
discounted at the instrument’s original effective interest
rate. The adjustment is recognized as interest income or
expense in the period in which the revision is made.

If the financial asset has been reclassified, subsequent
increases in the estimates of future cash receipts as a
result of increased recoverability are recognized as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate from the date of
the change in estimate.

Once afinancial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognized using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of

measuring the impairment loss.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of financial assets are recognized directly in profit or
loss unless an irrevocable selection is done to charge
it through Other Comprehensive Income. Once such
selection is done the changes in fair value is also charged
through Other Comprehensive Income unless the assets
is derecognized. The gain or loss on disposal of available
for sale financial assets is recognized directly in profit or
loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized
when the right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income are presented in other operating income.

Net Trading Income

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from
changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss and
dividend from financial assets through profit and loss.
Trading expenses are deducted from the trading income
and the amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in
statement of profit and loss

Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instrument measured at
fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/(losses)
arises from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair

value.
3.12 Interest expense

Interest expense including all other fees and service
charge on all financial liabilities are recognized in profit
or loss. The interest expenses so recognized closely
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approximates the interest expenses that would have
been derived under effective interest rate method. The
difference is not considered material. The Microfinance
considers the cost of exact calculation of effective interest
rate method exceeds the benefit that would be derived

from such compliance.
3.13 Employees Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the
prevailing Bonus Act to pay the amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following
items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period):

e wages, salaries and social security contributions;
e  profit-sharing and bonuses; and

e non-monetary benefits

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:

i.  Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution to a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay future amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel
expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the
related service are rendered by employees. Pre-paid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that
cash refund or reduction in future payments is available.
Contributions to a defined contribution plan being due for
more than 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employee render the service are discounted at their
present value. The following is the defined contribution
plan provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance
are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan in which both the employee and
the Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grades).

Microfinance does not assume any future liability for

whaﬁmaqﬁaﬁﬁaﬁwh@




5

g

e
* ok

@wmmmﬁamw%.

R O it ufdcer

200bb/bT

provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.
ii. Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

For defined benefit plans, the liability recognised in the
statement of financial position is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan
assets. Such obligations are estimated on the basis of

actuarial valuation.
Leave Benefit

The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry
forward a part of their unavailed/ unutilized leave subject
to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/
unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service
Byelaws of the Microfinance. The Microfinance accounts
for the liability for entire accumulated outstanding leave
balance on actuarial basis.

3.14 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a
lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date and requires an
assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Institution as a Lessee:

Finance leases that transfer to the Institution substantially
all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the commencement
of the lease at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized
in Finance cost in the income statement. Leased assets
are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However,
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Institution will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the lease term. Leases that do not transfer
to the Institution substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased items are operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured
solely to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost

increases, such increases are recognized in the year in
which such benefits accrue.

The Institution as a lessor:

SKBBL, as per prevailing laws and regulations relating to
bank and financial institutions, doesn’t have any property
which it avails for lease.

3.15 Share Capital and Reserve

The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments as
equity instruments or financial liabilities in accordance
with the substance with the contractual terms of the
instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total
assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common
shares are classified as equity of the Microfinance and
distributions thereon are presented in statement of
changes in equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity
instruments are deducted from the initial measurement of

the equity instruments.

The reserves include regulatory and other reserves
excluding retained earnings.

3.16 Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted average number
of equities shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the
profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or income (net of any
attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed
to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless
they have been issued at a later date.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would
require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted EPS is same as
basic EPS.

3.17 Segment reporting

The Microfinance uses following basis for identification of

the operating segments:




3t
R O afties ot
20blL/bT

a) components from which the Microfinance earns revenues and incurs expenses,

b) components whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation
to each segment and assess its performance, and

c) components for which discrete financial information is available.

Accordingly, the Microfinance has recognized its area office as its operating segments since the Microfinance performs
its business activities through these components.

Segment results that have been reported include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be allocated to segments
identified or those related to head office are unallocated.

4. EXPLANATORY NOTES

The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of Cash and Cash Equivalent is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount
of cash in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial
assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in their value and used by the Microfinance in the management of short-term commitment.

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Cash in Hand - - 7,00,000.00
Balance with B/Fls 26,11,67,443.13 15,17,04,927.52 8,33,70,394.98
Money at Call and Short Notices 1,59,77,82,434.69 2,29,69,34,828.50 1,31,99,10,971.55
Others - - -
Total 1,85,89,49,877.82 2,44,86,39,756.02 1,40,39,81,366.53

4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve has been presented under this account
head.

Balance with the central bank is principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the
central bank. There are regulatory and liquidity restrictions placed on the level of the balance with the central bank.

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Statutory Balances with NRB 12,13,50,000.00 10,00,00,000.00 9,00,00,000.00
Statutory balance with BFls - - -
Securities Purchased under Resale Agreement - - -
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB 26,10,046.37 2,13,80,526.37 -

Total 12,39,60,046.37 12,13,80,526.37 9,00,00,000.00

4.3 Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

The fair value of placement with the Bank and Financial Institutions is the amortized cost discounted using the effective
interest rate which is equivalent to interest rate in which the instrument has been placed.

There were placements with Bank & Financial Institution as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Placement with Domestic B/Fls - - _
Less: Allowance for Impairment . - -
Total - - -
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4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Held for Trading - R -
Interest rate Swap - - R
Currency Swap - - -
Forward Exchange Contract - - -
Others R R ~
Held for Risk Management - . R
Interest rate Swap - - -
Currency Swap - . -
Forward Exchange Contract - - -
Others R R _
Total - o -

4.5 Other Trading Assets

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Treasury Bills - - -
Government Bonds - - R
NRB Bonds - - _
Domestic Corporate Bond - R _
Equities - - -
Other - - R

Total - = -
Pledged - - -
Non-Pledged - R _

4.6 Loans and advances to MFIs & Co-operatives

Loan and advances given to Co-operative is shown at amortized cost and discounted using effective interest rate less
the amount of impairment allowances.

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Loans to Microfinance Institutions - - -
Loan to Financial Institutions - - -
Loan to Co-operatives 24,53,69,74142.57 21,37,22,93,198.51 20,45,70,60,134.29
Less: allowance for impairment other (65,45,28,520.36) (54,88,12,526.86) (30,24,04,290.95)
Less: allowance for impairment
Total 23,88,24,45,622.21 | 20,82,34,80,671.65 | 20,15,46,55,843.34

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be
estimated reliably.

The Microfinance deals with wholesale lending to Co-operatives.

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall
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apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, to determine the amount of
any impairment loss. ICAN has issued carve out on incurred loss model to measure the impairment loss on loan and
advances that the bank and financial instructions shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of
amount derived as per Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NAS 39. The provision
as per Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision is higher than the amount determined as per NAS 39. So, Impairment
loss on Loan and Advances has been determined based on current period’s loan disbursement using direction issued

by the NRB.

Particulars
Balance at Sharwan 1
Impairment loss for the year
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount Written off
Balance at Ashadh End

31-3-2078
54,88,12,526.86
10,57,15,993.50
31,567,73,004.68
(21,00,57,011.18)

65,45,28,520.36

31-3-2077
30,24,04,290.95
24,64,08,235.91
28,63,26,430.29

(3,99,18,194.38)

54,88,12,526.86

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076
25,79,70,227.87
4,44,34,063.08
7,45,79,176.26
(3,01,45,113.18)

30,24,04,290.95

4.7 Loan and Advances to Customers

Loan to employee provided according to the Microfinance’s Employee Byelaw is presented under this head. The staff

loans have been discounted at interest rate of 7% and loans portion disclosed under loans and advances to customers.

Particulars

Loan and Advance measured at amortized cost
Less: Impairment Allowances

Collective Impairment

Individual Impairment
Net Amount
Loan and advance measured at FVTPL
Total

31-3-2078
3,20,42,601.54

3,20,42,601.54

3,20,42,601.54

31-3-2077
2,77,55,028.96

2,77,55,028.96

2,77,55,028.96

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076
2,17,18,528.51

2,17,18,528.51

2,17,18,528.51

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advance-By Product

Particulars

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Products
Term loans
Short term, term loan
Long term, term loan
Hire purchase loan
Personnel Residential Loans
Staff Loans
Other
Sub Total
Interest Receivable

Grand Total

2,76,34,831.49
2,76,34,831.49
44,07,770.05
3,20,42,601.54

2,43,33,303.45
2,43,33,303.45
34,21,725.51
2,77,55,028.96

1,91,09,340.67
1,91,09,340.67
26,09,187.84
2,17,18,528.51

4.7.2 Analysis of loan and Advance- By Collateral

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Particulars
Secured
Immovable Assets |

Government Guarantee |

31-3-2078

317,17,664.09 |

31-3-2077

2,76,35,869.45 |

2,15,01,137.47
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Collateral of Government Securities - - -
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipts - - -
Group Guarantee - - -
Personal Guarantee - - -

Other Collateral - - R

Subtotal 3,17,17,664.09 2,76,35,869.45 2,15,01,137.47
Unsecured 3,24,937.45 1,19,159.51 217,391.04
Grand Total 3,20,42,601.54 2,77,55,028.96 2,17,18,528.51
4.7.3 Allowances for Impairment (Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Sharwan 1 - - -
Impairment loss for the year - - -

Charge for the year - - R

Recovery/reversal during the year - - R
Write-Offs - - -
Other movement - - -
Balance at Ashadh End - o -
Collective allowances for impairment - - R
Balance at Sharwan 1 - - -
Impairment loss for the year: - - -

Charge/(reversal) for the year - - R
Other Movement - - -

Balance at Ashadh End 2078 - o -

Total allowances for impairment - o -

4.8 Investments in Securities

Investments made by the Microfinance has been presented under this account head in three categories i.e. investment
securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and

investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost 13,56,78,000.00 89,00,00,000.00 19,00,00,000.00
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 57,46,161.00 15,53,746.00 18,79,064.00
Total 14,14,24,161.00 89,15,53,746.00 19,18,79,064.00
4.8.1 Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost (Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Debt Securities - - _
Government Bonds - - -

Government treasury bills - . -
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Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - -

Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments - - -

Other - - -
Fixed Deposit 13,56,78,000.00 89,00,00,000.00 19,00,00,000.00

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total 13,56,78,000.00 89,00,00,000.00 19,00,00,000.00

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI (Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

Equity Investment

Quoted Equity Securities | 57.36,161.00 | 15,43,746.00 | 18,69,064.00
Unquoted Equity Instruments

Center for Microfinance Pvt. Ltd. 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Total 57,46,161.00 15,53,746.00 18,79,064.00

Investments in Center for Microfinance Pvt. Ltd.

This investment has been made as a strategic investment to support the Microfinance’s operational requirement. Similar
investment in Center for Microfinance Pvt. Ltd. has been made by other Microfinance Institutions. This investment is not
actively traded in the market and are therefore is not liquid. The Microfinance has no intention to dispose these investments
in foreseeable future. This investment has been carried at as the level 3 valuation which is nearer to book value.

4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities (Amount in NPR)

31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2077

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value

Particular

Investment in Quoted equity

Api Power Ltd. 2,600 14,105 2,600 2,808 2,600 3,718

35 shares of Rs 403 each.

Hydroelectricity Investment and 1,158,600 57,22,056 1,158,600 15,40,938 1,158,600 18,65,346
Development Company Ltd.

12,744 shares of Rs 449 each.
Investment in unquoted equity
Center for Microfinance Pvt. Ltd. 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

100 Share of NPR 100 Each
Total 11,71,200 57,46,161 11,71,200 15,53,746 11,71,200 | 18,79,064

4.9 Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

This includes advance payment made by SKBBL towards income tax liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing

authorities.
(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2077
Current Tax Assets 27,63,01,097.73 24,46,51,035.41 21,90,21,555.70
Current Year Income Tax Assets 27,42,56,137.36 23,81,12,129.62 21,90,21,555.70
Tax Assets of Prior Periods 20,44,960.37 65,38,905.79

Current tax Liabilities (26,70,34,252.81) (24,26,06,075.04) (21,24,82,649.91)
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities (26,70,34,252.81) (24,26,06,075.04) (21,24,82,649.91)
Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods - - -
Total 92,66,844.92 20,44,960.37 65,38,905.79
4.10 Investment Properties (Amount in NPR)

Particular 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2077

Investment Properties Measured at fair value

Balance as of Sharwan 1, 2077 - R _




Addition/Disposal During the year

Net Changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net Amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as of Sharwan 1, 2077

Addition/disposal during the year

adjustment/transfer
accumulated depreciation
accumulated impairment loss
Net Amount

Total

4.11 Property and Equipment

Description

Computer &

Accessories

Vehicles

Furniture &
Fixture

Machinery

Equipment

(Amount in NPR)

TOTAL 31
Ashad 2078

Cost (NPR)
As on Sharwan 1, 2076
Addition during the year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal During the Year
Adjustment /Revaluations
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2077
Addition during the year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal During the Year
Adjustment /Revaluations
Balance as at 31 Ashad 2078
Depreciation and Impairment
As on Sharwan 1, 2076
Depreciation for the year
Impairment for the year
Disposal
Adjustment
As on 31 Ashad 2077
Depreciation for the year
Impairment for the year
Disposal
Adjustment
As on 31 Ashad 2078
Capital Work In Progress
Net Book Value
As on Ashad End 2076
As on Ashad End 2077
As on Ashad End 2078

60,35,668.05
9,27,020.42
9,27,020.42

69,62,688.47
61,73,734.32
61,73,734.32

1,31,36,422.79

30,03,554.99
12,08,035.37

42,11,590.35
15,16,302.54

57,27,892.90

30,32,113.06
27,51,098.12
74,08,529.89

1,02,52,488.21
11,59,677.02
11,59,677.02

1,14,12,165.23
21,98,794.00
21,98,794.00

1,36,10,959.23

35,00,427.38
26,65,097.23

61,65,524.61
26,44,022.26

88,09,546.86

67,52,060.83
52,46,640.62
48,01,412.36

31,68,645.28
11,97,017.87
11,97,017.87

43,65,663.15
7,11,895.76
7,11,895.76

50,77,558.91

12,06,759.92
9,32,600.02

21,39,359.95
9,18,550.66

30,57,910.61

19,61,885.35
22,26,303.20
20,19,648.30

1,47,697.30

1,47,697.30

1,47,697.30

92,688.10
36,833.08

1,29,521.18
9,081.16

1,38,602.35

55,009.19
18,176.11
9,094.95

34,66,595.98
17,68,039.84
17,68,039.84

(3,11,307.93)

49,23,327.89
10,42,280.52
10,42,280.52

59,65,608.41

18,60,402.30
4,21,410.58

22,81,812.88
9,37,050.41

32,18,863.29

16,06,193.68
26,41,515.01
27,46,74513

11,12,369.83
212,622.43
212,622.43

13,24,992.26
27,321.64
27,321.64

13,52,313.90

2,21,796.25
1,92,971.87

4,14,768.12
210,225.95

6,24,994.07

8,90,573.58
9,10,224.14
7,27,319.83

2,41,83,464.64
52,64,377.58
52,64,377.58

(3,11,307.93)
2,91,36,534.29
1,01,564,026.24
1,01,564,026.24

3,92,90,560.53
98,85,628.94
54,56,948.15

1,53,42,577.10
62,35,232.98

2,15,77,810.07

1,42,97,835.70
1,37,93,957.20
1,77,12,750.46

4.12 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer

account head.

@Wﬁmaﬁmmaqﬁaﬁfﬁaw%.

software both purchased and internally generated etc has been presented under this




Description Goodwill

Cost (NPR)
As on Sharwan 1, 2076
Addition during the year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal During the Year
Adjustment /Revaluations
As at 31 Ashad 2077
Addition during the year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal During the Year
Adjustment /Revaluations
As at 31 Ashad 2078
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sharwan 1, 2076

Amortization for the year

Impairment for the year
Disposal
Adjustment
As at 31 Ashad 2077
Amortization for the year
Impairment for the year
Disposal
Adjustment
As at 31 Ashad 2078
Capital Work In Progress
Net Book Value
As on Ashad End 2076
As on Ashad End 2077
As on Ashad End 2078

Software
Purchased

12,01,495.75

7,63,111.60

19,64,607.35
5,48,050.00

25,12,657.35

8,07,575.75
2,96,400.00

11,03,975.75
4,06,010.00

15,09,985.75

3,93,920.00
8,60,631.60
10,02,671.60

Software
Developed

Qo’"mmmuﬁaaa 7

20blL/bT

Other

(Amount in NPR)

TOTAL 31st
Ashad 2078

12,01,495.75

7,63,111.60

19,64,607.35
5,48,050.00

25,12,657.35

8,07,575.75
2,96,400.00

11,03,975.75
4,06,010.00

15,09,985.75

3,93,920.00
8,60,631.60
10,02,671.60

4.13 Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward of unused tax losses, changes in tax

rate etc. has been presented under this account head.

Current Year

Deferred Tax on temporary differences on following item

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax

(Amount in NPR)
Net Deferred Tax

Loan and Advance to B/Fis

Loan and Advance to customers

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

Property & Equipment

Employees defined benefit plan

Lease Liabilities

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on year end of Ashadh End 2078

asset

15,28,665.59
2,12,29,517.70

2,27,53,183.29

Liabilities

1,372,488.30

13,72,488.30

Asset/(Liabilities)

(1,372,488.30)
15,23,665.59
2,12,29,517.70

2,13,80,694.99

whaﬁmaqﬁaﬁﬁaﬁwh@
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Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax on temporary differences on following item

Net Deferred Tax

asset Liabilities

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities as on shrawan 1, 2077
Origination/(Reversal)during the year

Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in the comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in directly in equity

Asset/(Liabilities)

(1,87,22,022.16)
26,58,672.83
(49,75,338.23)
23,16,665.40

Previous Year

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred Tax
asset

Deferred Tax on temporary differences on following item

Net Deferred Tax

Asset/(Liabilities)

Loan and Advance to B/Fis
Loan and Advance to customers
Investment Properties
Investment Securities 1,14,763.80
Property & Equipment 12,35,942.26
Employees defined benefit plan 1,76,00,843.70
Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on year end of Ashadh End 2077

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities as on shrawan 1, 2076

1,88,36,785.96 1,14,763.80

Origination/(Reversal)during the year
Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in the comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in directly in equity

(1,14,763.80)
12,35,942.26
1,76,00,843.70

1,87,22,022.16
(1,41,37,438.36)

45,84,583.80
(31,21,392.30)
(14,63,191.50)

Opening Statement of Financial Position

Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax on temporary differences on following item

Net Deferred Tax

asset Liabilities
Loan and Advance to B/Fis
Loan and Advance to customers
Investment Properties
Investment Securities 2,12,359.20
13,28,732.56

1,30,21,065.00

Property & Equipment

Employees defined benefit plan

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on year end of Ashadh End 2076
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities as on 31st Ashad, 2076

1,43,49,797.56 2,12,359.20

Origination/(Reversal)during the year
Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in the comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense /(income)recognized in directly in equity

Asset/(Liabilities)

(2,12,359.20)
13,28,732.56
1,30,21,065.00

1,41,37,438.36
(74,49,475.94)
66,87,962.42
(66,87,962.42)

4.14 Other Assets

The other assets that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortized costs and those other assets that do

not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These instruments are regularly monitored for impairment

@Wﬁmaﬁmmaqﬁaﬁfﬁmw%.



Particulars
Assets held for sale
Other non banking assets
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Accrued income
Prepayments and deposit
Income tax deposit
Deferred employee expenditure
Other
Consumables
Inter branch balance
Replication advance
Other institution advance
Other Staff Advance
Total

31-3-2078

41,73,567.66
2,93,983.46
8,99,901.20

1,81,77,304.77

8,42,142.52
8,622.40
1,39,02,530.00
1,45,669.97
3,84,43,621.98

Qo’"mmasuﬁaaa
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31-3-2077

7,92,156.70
25,41133.71
15,40,413.15

1,58,569,867.45

1,75,351.26
4,99,718.16
1,69,72,380.00
1,97,998.60
4,49,344.24
3,80,28,363.27

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

83,18,320.92

10,26,171.06

1,22,47,616.73

1,67,127.57
2,27,25,305.00
2,73,998.60
1,90,000.00
4,49,38,539.88

4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particular

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)

31-3-2076

Borrowing from BFls

Settlement and clearing accounts
other

Total

7,10,31,66,638.53

7,10,31,66,638.53

8,29,19,01,242.80

8,29,19,01,242.80

8,99,65,10,590.18

8,99,65,10,590.18

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particular

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Refinance from NRB
Standing Liquid Facility
Lender of Last report facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreement

Other payable to NRB 12,05,26,835.32 17,44,796.00 28,28,660.00

Total 12,05,26,835.32 17,44,796.00 28,28,660.00
Other Payable to NRB comprises of Loan obtained from NRB for Rural Self Reliance Fund.

4.17 Derivative Financial instruments (Amount in NPR)

31-3-2077

31-3-2076

Particulars 31-3-2078

Held for Trading

Interest rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract
Others

Held for Risk Management
Interest rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contract
Others

Total
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4.18 Deposits from Customers

Particulars

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Institution Customers:

Term Deposit
Call Deposit
Other

Individual Customers:
Term Deposit
Saving Deposit
Saving from Members
Other

Total

4.19 Borrowings

Particulars
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Licensed Institutions
Other
Subtotal
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institution
Subtotal

Total

31-3-2078

13,09,31,00,221.06

13,09,31,00,221.06

13,09,31,00,221.06

31-3-2077

11,08,05,97,044.05

11,08,05,97,044.05

11,08,05,97,044.05

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

8,65,10,01,000.00

8,65,10,01,000.00

8,65,10,01,000.00

4.20 Provisions

Particulars

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Provision for Redundancy
Provision for Restructuring
Pending Legal Issues and Tax Litigation
Onerous Contracts
Other
Total

4.20.1 Movement In Provision
Particulars

Balance as at Shrawan 1

Provision made during the year

Provision used during the year

Provision reversed during the year

Unwind of Discount

Balance as at Ashadh End

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

4.21 Other Liabilities

Non-financial liabilities are recorded and reported at cost based on legal and constructive obligation to the Microfinance. Liquidity &

Institutional savings comprises of liquidity saving as per the liquidity saving policy approved by the BOD meeting held on 14th june 2020.
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Particulars
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service leave
Short-term employee benefits
Bills payable
Creditors and accruals
Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant income
Unpaid Dividend
Liabilities under Finance Lease
Employee bonus payable
Other
Employee Welfare Fund
Interbranch Balance
Office Expenses Payable
Liquidity & Institutional Savings
Training fund
Other Donation fund
Payable operating expenses
TDS Payables
Staff payables
Replication programme
Agriculture Internship Program Deposit
Training programme
Livestock Security
Deposits
Information technology fund
IT cyclic fund
Sana Kishan Sammelan Fund
Sana Kishan Rahat Fund
Dividend Payable
Other
Total

31-3-2078
4,25,15,417.00
2,82,49,642.00
66,745.01
39,30,028.15

9,78,71,420.93

3,06,22,075.03

1,92,66,60,776.67
1,798.25
31,61,711.24
83,98,425.04
56,54,571.56
8,89,304.24
5,91,90,729.89
6,18,86,645.31
1,21,20,749.74

10,00,000.00
10,00,000.00
15,91,250.36
38,49,643.63
55,927.36
2,28,87,16,861.41

Qo’"mmasuﬁaaa

31-3-2077
3,75,72,837.00
2,10,96,642.00

66,04,066.02
13,84,420.90

8,83,52,066.97

2,78,10,892.73

1,72,71,48,709.33
1,798.25
35,35,958.00
10,88,5699.63
68,15,533.88
78,738.77
7,24,92,382.61
6,69,87,500.86
14,00,270.00
15,44,048.75
10,00,000.00
10,00,000.00
15,91,250.36
38,49,643.63

2,07,13,55,359.69

200b/bT

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076
2,64,68,463.00
1,69,35,087.00
28,94,572.74
80,61,402.89

7,04,50,081.91

2,45,75,806.94
13,74,970.87
1,48,70,32,695.85
1,798.25
39,29,547.00
3,02,410.05
47,84,310.79
6,69,412.70
6,60,65,163.06
14,48,63,344.15
31,60,981.00
13,31,391.51
10,00,000.00
11,00,000.00
38,49,643.63

1,86,88,50,983.34

4.21.1 Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Particulars

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Present value of funded obligations
Total Present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

4,25,15,417.00
4,25,15,417.00
4,25,15,417.00
4,2515,417.00

3,75,72,837.00
3,75,72,837.00
3,75,72,837.00
3,75,72,837.00

2,64,68,463.00
2,64,68,463.00
2,64,68,463.00
2,64,68,463.00

4.21.2 Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise

Particular

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Equity Securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other

Total

Actual return on plan assets
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4.21.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Particular
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service cost and Interest

Defined benefit obligations at Ashar end

31-3-2078
3,75,72,837.00
(35,29,803.00)

84,72,383.00
4,25,15,417.00

31-3-2077
2,64,68,463.00
45,51,987.00
65,52,387.00
3,75,72,837.00

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076
1,13,69,409.00
1,09,96,960.00
41,02,094.00
2,64,68,463.00

4.21.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particular

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefit paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

4.21.5 Amount recognized in profit or loss

(Amount in NPR)

Particular 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Current Service cost 58,49,974.00 47,04,771.00 33,06,235.00
Interest On Obligation 26,22,409.00 18,47,616.00 7,95,859.00
Expected Return on plan assets - - -
Total 84,72,383.00 65,52,387.00 41,02,094.00
4.21.6 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (Amount in NPR)

Particular 31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076
Actual (gain)/loss (35,29,803.00) 45,51,987.00 1,09,96,960.00
Total (35,29,803.00) 45,51,987.00 1,09,96,960.00

4.21.7 Actuarial Assumptions

Particular

Discount Rate
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increases

Withdrawal rate

31-3-2078
7.0%

10.0%
0.5%

31-3-2077
7.0%

10.0%
0.5%

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076
7.0%

10.0%
0.5%

4.21.8 Long Service Leave

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Particular

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Present value of funded obligations
Total Present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations

2,82,49,642.00
2,82,49,642.00
2,82,49,642.00
2,82,49,642.00

2,10,96,642.00
2,10,96,642.00
2,10,96,642.00
2,10,96,642.00

1,69,35,087.00
1,69,35,087.00
1,69,35,087.00
1,69,35,087.00

4.21.9 Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise

Particular

31-3-2078

(Amount in NPR)

Equity Securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other

Total

Actual return on plan assets

31-3-2077

31-3-2076
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4.21.10 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Particular 31-3-2078
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 2,10,96,642.00
Actuarial losses 5,72,259.00
Benefits paid by the plan (21,14,180.00)
Current service cost and Interest 86,94,921.00
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 2,82,49,642.00

1,69,35,087.00
(11,38,460.00)
(16,51,590.00)
69,51,605.00
2,10,96,642.00

1,07,07,108.00
20,39,047.00
(15,22,531.00)
57,11,463.00
1,69,35,087.00

4.21.11 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particular 31-3-2078

(Amount in NPR)

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 -
Contributions paid into the plan -
Benefit paid during the year -
Actuarial (losses) gains -
Expected return on plan assets -

Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end -

31-3-2077

31-3-2076

4.21.12 Amount recognized in profit or loss

(Amount in NPR)

Particular 31-3-2078
Current Service cost 72,33,576.00
Interest On Obligation 14,61,345.00
Actuarial (losses) gains 5,72,259.00
Total 92,67,180.00

31-3-2077
57,76,341.00
11,75,264.00

(11,38,460.00)
58,13,145.00

31-3-2076
49,61,966.00
7,49,497.00

57,11,463.00

4.21.13 Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

(Amount in NPR)

Particular 31-3-2078
Actual (gain)/loss R
Total -

31-3-2077

31-3-2076

4.21.14 Actuarial Assumptions
Particular 31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Discount Rate 7.0%
Expected return on plan asset -
Future salary increases 10.0%
Withdrawal rate 0.5%

7.0%

10.0%
0.5%

7.0%

10.0%
0.5%

4.22 Debt securities issued
Particular 31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through PL

Debt securities issued at amortized cost -
Total -

4.23 Subordinated Liabilities
Particular 31-3-2078

31-3-2077

Redeemable preference share -
Irredeemable cumulative preference share -
Other -

Total -
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4.24 Share Capital

The Microfinance’s registered capital structure is as follows:

Particular

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)

31-3-2076

Ordinary Share

Convertible Preference Share
Irredeemable Preference Share
Perpetual Debt (Equity Component only)
Total

1,25,15,30,982.08

1,25,15,30,982.08

1,00,02,29,425.66

1,00,02,29,425.66

78,60,34,912.11

78,60,34,912.11

4.24.1 Ordinary Shares

Particular

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

Authorized Capital
10,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
20,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
20,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Issued capital
10,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
10,002,294.26 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
12,515,309.82 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Subscribed and paid up capital
7,860,349.12 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
10,002,294.26 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
12,515,309.82 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each
Total

2,00,00,00,000.00

1,25,15,30,982.08

1,25,15,30,982.08
1,25,15,30,982.08

2,00,00,00,000.00

1,00,02,29,425.66

1,00,02,29,425.66

1,00,02,29,425.66

31-3-2076

1,00,00,00,000.00

1,00,00,00,000.00

78,60,34,912.11

78,60,34,912.11

4.24.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

The shareholding pattern of the microfinance is as follows:

Particular

Domestic ownership (Promoter) 69.89 87,46,52,024.46 69.93
Nepal Government - - -

A Class licenced institutions 26.26 32,85,69,829.75 26.28
Other Licenced institutions - - -
Other institutions (Small Farmers Cooperatives) 43.63 54,60,82,194.71 43.65
Other - - -
Domestic ownership (Public) 30.11 37,68,78,957.62 | 30.07
Foreign Ownership (Promoter) - - -
Foreign Ownership (Public) - - -
Total 100.00 | 1,25,15,30,982.08 | 100.00

69,94,62179.57

26,28,55,863.80

43,65,96,315.77

30,07,77,246.09

1,00,02,29,425.66

31-3-2078 31-3-2077 31-3-2076

54,96,67,693.36

20,65,66,494.14

34,31,01,199.22

23,63,67,218.75

78,60,34,912.11

Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares capital

Particulars

Agriculture Development Bank

Nabil Bank Ltd

Nepal Bank Ltd

Sana Kishan Kirshi Sahakari Sanstha Ltd. Anandaban
Sana Kishan Kirshi Sahakari Sanstha Ltd. Dumarwana
Sana Kishan Kirshi Sahakari Sanstha Ltd. Naktajhij
Sana Kishan Kirshi Sahakari Sanstha Ltd. Digambarpur

% of Holding

22.01%
3.03%
1.21%
0.89%
0.83%
0.58%
0.55%

Shares Holding(No of Shares)

27,54,308
3,79,565
1,61,825
111,492
1,04,297
72,509
68,470
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4.25 Reserve

The reserves including regulatory and other reserve excluding retained earnings are as following:

Particular

Statutory general reserve
Capital reserve
Exchange equalization reserve

Investment adjustment reserve

Client Protection Fund
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve
Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve
Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial reserve
Special reserve
Other reserve
Capital Reserve Fund
Deferred Tax Reserve
Loan Forgive Fund

Replication Fund

Corporate social responsibility fund

31-3-2078

65,94,07,051.82

10,000.00
2,69,13,341.74
9,63,31,455.68

1,67,78,476.59

34,14,831.90

(7,15,5628.80)

27,09,61,321.17
66,11,730.66
10,36,61,613.00
1,05,09,554.00

31-3-2077

49,73,96,980.67

10,000.00
3,10,28,665.96
7,70,32,890.84

1,68,21,362.62

4,80,141.40

(31,86,390.90)

26,71,65,737.61
66,11,730.66
10,36,61,613.00
1,05,09,554.00
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Institutional Strengthening Fund 16,73,48,063.27 13,81,13,862.72
Rural Self Reliance Fund 92,71,892.62 -
Reconstruction Fund 9,34,67,845.21 7,50,94,639.19
Remittance Risk Fund 2,74,833.67 2,74,833.67

Total 1,46,22,46,482.53 1,22,10,15,621.45

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

38,61,63,409.77

10,000.00
1,17,33,391.22
5,66,77,616.10

75,25,707.70

7,07,864.00

26,65,04,663.18
66,11,730.66
10,36,61,613.00
1,05,09,554.00
12,562,02,626.75
5,84,08,103.55
2,74,833.67

1,03,29,81,113.60

General Reserve

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve until the reserve is twice the
paid up share capital. The reserve is the accumulation of setting aside profits over the years.

20% of net profit NPR 16,20,10,071.15 has been allocated to this reserve during the year. The closing balance of the
fund for the current period is NPR 65,94,07,051.82. Allocation to this fund has been calculated on the basis of Net
Profit after tax as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

Reconstruction Fund

Reconstruction fund is created for restructuring & reconstruction of building of cooperatives that were affected by the
conflict. 3% of net profit NPR 1,83,73,206.02 has been allocated to this fund during the year. The closing balance of
the fund for the current period is NPR 9,34,67,845.21. Allocation to this fund has been calculated on the basis of Net
Profit after tax as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

Institutional Strengthening Fund

Institutional Strengthening fund has been created for institutional development of cooperatives affiliated with SKBBL.
10% of net profit after reduction of current year’s allocation to client protection fund and corporate social responsibility
fund is credited to this fund which amounts to NPR 2,92,34,200.55. The closing balance of the fund for the current
period is NPR 16,73,48,063.27. Allocation to this fund has been calculated on the basis of Net Profit after tax as per
financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

Client Protection Fund

Client Protection Fund has been created as per directive no. 077/4.1(Ja) of Nepal Rastra Bank’s directive to D class

BFls. 1% of net profit and 25% of any amount of Bonus or cash dividend declared inexcess of 20%, is transferred to
this fund which amounts to NPR 2,58,85,417.51 and NPR 75,86,852.67 has been expended from this fund during
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current year. The closing balance of the fund for the current period is NPR 9,53,31,455.68. Allocation to this fund has
been calculated on the basis of Net Profit after tax as per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund is created amounting 1% of Net Profit as per Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directive.
Utilization of amount from last year has been transferred to Retained Earning.

1% of net profit is transferred to this fund which amounts to NPR 61,24,402.01 and NPR 1,02,39,726.23 has
been expended from this fund during current year. The closing balance of the fund for the current period is NPR
2,69,13,341.74. Allocation to this fund has been calculated on the basis of Net Profit after tax as per financial statement

prepared for regulatory purpose.
Loan Amortization Fund

This fund includes the amount provided by Agricultural Development Bank at the time of handover of SFACLs to
this financial institution. NRB has granted permission to include the amount of NPR 10,36,61,613.00 of this fund in
primary capital as per its letter dated 2012.06.05. The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund
in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Replication Fund

This fund includes amount separated for the purpose of expansion of services and replication program of the financial
institution, prize money of CGAP, support received from GIZ and amount deposited for this fund which includes total
sum of NPR 1,05,09,554. The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes

in Equity.
Remittance Risk Fund

This includes amount of NPR 2,74,833.67 received through different sources for the purpose of remittance services
provided by this financial institution to its member cooperatives before 2013. remittance services. The amount of this
fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

As per the provisions of NRB directive 2077, point no 8.5, the amount of NPR 10,000 invested by this financial
institution in Centre for Microfinance Pvt. Ltd. has been included in this fund as this share is not listed in stock market.
The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Capital Reserve Fund

The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity. The fund

includes following amount:

Particulars Amount (NPR)
1. | Amount received from loan exemption 6,91,72,603.00
2. | Credit Line from ADB, Manila 19,29,54,395.00
3. | Grant Assets 88,34,32317
Total Capital Reseve Fund 27,09,61,321.17

1. Nepal Government has granted exemption for the credit provided to small and medium entrepreneurs through
small farmer cooperatives for the fiscal year 2006/2007. The financial institution has included the claim amount
received from the Government only to the extent it has impact on the net profit as per the directions of Ministry of
Finance.

2. The grant amount received in the form of Line of Credit from Asian Development Bank for the project
“Expanding Microfinance Program in Hill and Mountain of Nepal” from 2011 to 2014.

3. The assets received from different organizations has been included in the fund net of depreciation.
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Deferred Tax Reserves

It includes amount set aside by the financial institution as per the directives of Nepal Rastra bank regarding Deferred
Tax. The amount of this fund was NPR 66,11,730.66 in the previous fiscal year and there has not been any changes in
this fiscal year. The amount of this fund has been shown under other reserve fund in Statement of Changes in Equity.

Regulatory Reserve

It includes amount allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance as per the Directive of NRB for the
purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as
well as bonus shares) and shall be presented under this account head. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance
includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashad End
2078 not recovered, Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets, Non-Banking Assets, reduction in fair value of investment in

equity below cost price, actuarial loss etc.
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75/76 - 75,25,707.70 - 75,25,707.70
76/77 | 15,24,680.23 1,21,10,291.50 31,86,390.90 - 1,68,21,362.62
77/78 2,93,983.46 1,47,68,964.33 7,15,528.80 - 1,57,78,476.59

* Regulatory Reserve regarding the transfer of Deferred tax assets amount net of deferred tax reserve already created has been transferred to

regulatory reserve

Rural Self Reliance Fund

Nepal Government, ministry level decision dated 10th December 2018 has handed over the RSRC fund from Nepal
Rastra Bank to SKBBL. As per the above agreement, write back of loan loss provision due to realization of loan has
been transferred to RSRF reserve until all the loans handed over are settled which is Rs. 92,71,892.62.

Fair Value Reserve

This reserve has been created to reflect the gain or loss in investments due to fair value adjustment through other
comprehensive income. The closing balance of the reserve for the current period is NPR 34,14,831.90.

Actuarial Reserve

This reserve has been created to reflect the acturial gain or loss in defined benefit obligation of gratuity scheme of
SKBBL. The closing balance of the reserve for the current period is NPR (7,15,528.80).

4.26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

The Microfinance seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, but may be subject to regulatory actions
and investigations, the outcome of which are generally difficult to predict and can be material to the Microfinance. The

Microfinance considers none of these claims as material.

Where appropriate, the Microfinance recognizes a provision for liabilities when it is probable that an outflow of

economic resources embodying economic benefits will be required and for which a reliable estimate can be made of
the obligation(s). As on Ashadh End 2078 there is no Contingent Liabilities.
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Particulars

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Contingent Liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
capital Commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Others

Total

4.26.1 Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the micofinance but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particulars
Capital commitments in relation to property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub total
Capital commitments in relation to intangible assets
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

4.26.2 Lease commitments

Particulars

31-3-2078

31-3-2077

(Amount in NPR)
31-3-2076

Operating Lease Commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
lease where the institution is lessee

not later than 1 year

later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

later than 5 years

Sub Total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating,
where institution is lessee

not later than 1 year

later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand Total

4.26.3 Litigation

There are no litigation contingent liabilities.




4.27 Interest Income
Particulars
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with bank and financial institutions
Loans and Advances to Banks & Fl
Loans and Advances to Customers
Investment securities
Loan & Advance to Staffs
Other

Total Interest Income

2077-78

11,60,32,128.81

1,77,09,75,503.40

21,31,317.52

1,88,91,38,949.73

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77

16,38,78,655.87

2,10,12,33,676.45

28,87,133.68

2,26,79,99,466.00

4.28 Interest Expenses
Particulars
Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposit from customers
Borrowing
Debt Securities in issued
Subordinated liabilities
Others
Liquidity & Institutional Savings
Agriculture Internship Program Deposit

Interest on amount not Invested For Client Protection Fund

Total Interest Expenses

2077-78
44,01,16,613.50
73,691.50
13,59,10,388.28

9,21,76,242.72
27,76,126.13
7,568,654.70
67,18,11,716.83

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77
91,48,58,533.22
1,27,884.70
10,49,65,026.56

10,12,36,857.93
33,55,150.37

1,12,45,43,452.78

4.29 Fees and commission income
Particulars

Loan administration fees

Service Fees

Commitment Fees

Prepayment Fees

Remittance Fee

Brokerage Fee

Others Fees and Commission Income

Total Fee and Commission Income

2077-78

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77

4.30 Fees and commission Expense
Particulars
Brokerage
ATM management Fees
Visa Master card Fee
Guarantee Commission Fees
Brokerage
DD/TT/Swift Fee
Remittance Fees and Commission
Other fees and commission Expenses

Total fee and Commission Expenses

2077-78

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77
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4.31 Net Trading Income
Particulars
Changes in fair value of trading asset
Gain on disposal of trading asset
Interest income on trading asset
Dividend income on trading asset
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction
Other

Net Trading Income

2077-78

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77

4.32 Other Operating Income
Particulars

Foreign exchange revaluation gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on Equity instruments
Gain on disposal of Property and Equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment properties
Operating lease income
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver
Other

Examination Income

Other

Total Other Operating Income

2077-78

145,288.44

54,500.00
2,23,454.35
4,23,242.79

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77

6,000.00
6,55,710.54
6,61,710.54

4.33 Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for loan and other losses
Particulars

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advance to B/Fls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advance to Customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Placement with BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on PPE

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible asset

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total

2077-78
10,57,15,993.52

10,57,15,993.52

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77
12,35,33,681.97

12,35,33,681.97

4.34 Personnel Expenses
Particulars

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity expense

Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense

Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive

Cash-settled share-based payments

2077-78

4,37,02,201.15
78,95,313.01
84,72,383.00
37,34,693.73
12,87,264.00
15,52,304.65
92,67,180.00
33,84,765.00
7,71,236.85

(Amount in NPR)
2076-77
3,98,569,5631.38
73,03,500.72
65,52,387.00
33,88,386.00
11,34,435.00
25,52,009.27
58,13,145.00
29,568,295.00
6,71,5625.02
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Pension expense - -

Finance expense under NFRSs 8,33,221.23 71110314
Dashain expenses 35,71,472.50 32,73,305.00
Overtime expenses 4,76,664.00 6,91,331.00
Remuneration expenses 8,78,350.00 12,69,650.00
Bank day allowance 33,40,250.01 32,68,896.23
Consultancy fee - 19,85,823.53
Newspaper Allowances 4,58,136.98 -
Subtotal 8,96,25,436.11 8,14,33,323.29
Provision for Staff Bonus 9,78,71,420.93 8,83,52,066.97
Total 18,74,96,857.03 16,97,85,390.26

*Provision for staff bonus is mandatory under the requirement of the Bonus Act 2030 and Nepal Rastra Bank Directive and same has
been complied.

Here, Provision for staff bonus is allocated 10% of Net Profit before such bonus. For the purpose of calculation of such bonus, profit as
per financial statement prepared for regulatory purpose has been considered.

As per the directives to D Class Bank & Financial Institution from Nepal Rastra Bank 2077 point no 6.5, 3% of staff expenses should be
utilized in the training and other staff efficiency promotional activities. Total staff expense of previous year is NPR 4,71,63,032.10 and its
3% threshold is NPR 14,14,890.96. In the current fiscal year, NPR 15,52,304.65 has been spent as training expenses.

4.35 Other Operating Expenses (Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Directors’ Fee 12,84,000.00 10,04,000.00
Directors’ Expenses 8,29,274.76 10,48,984.75
Auditors’ remuneration 3,50,000.00 5,50,000.00
Other audit related expenses 2,62,000.00 4,38,094.00

Professional and legal expenses - -
Office Administration expense - -
Operating lease expenses 83,32,099.85 75,21,700.66
Operating expenses of investment properties - -
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses - -
Client Protection expenses - -

Onerous lease provisions - -

Other 3,92,99,755.43 3,65,71,308.80

Total 5,03,57,130.04 4,71,34,088.21

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense (Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77

Water and electricity 10,01,811.43 10,92,676.52

Repair and maintenance 9,57,701.05 10,78,840.92

(a) Building - -

)
b) Vehicle 6,94,807.89 7,58,280.62
c) Computer and accessories - -
)
)

(
(
(d) Office equipment and furniture - -
(

e) Other 2,62,893.16 3,20,560.30
Insurance 3,91,718.62 5,48,887.39
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 26,12,879.57 14,58,395.15
Printing and stationery 10,22,261.40 8,72,855.36
News paper, books and journals 7,38,896.28 5,48107.52
Advertisement 5,23,195.00 2,01,752.50
Donation - -

Security expense - R
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Deposit and loan guarantee premium
Travel allowance and expense
Entertainment

Annual/special general meeting expense
Other

a) Share issuance cost

b) Fuel expenses

c) Renewal fee

d) subcommittee expenses

e) Recruitment expenses

f) Bank day / incentives

g) Donor programme expenses
h) Business promotion

i) Publication expenses

k) Trainee selection expenses

I) Loan Renewal and Bank Charges

m) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
n) Effective learning
0) Miscellaneous
p) Furnishing Expenses

q
r) Membership Expenses

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(i)

(j) Small Farmer Cooperative Microfinance Conference
(

(

(

(

(

(

(g) Technical Consultancy Expenses
(

(

s) Write off Expenses

Total

27,94,480.00
8,02,840.65
5,68,527.46

17,93,347.39
16,98,5685.08
5,33,016.00
7,42,428.00
7,36,821.00
2,14,333.00
5,43,762.61

95,164.00
76,23,066.60
1,02,39,726.23
10,90,903.64
4,61,834.16
13,63,451.98
7,17,983.88
41,020.40
3,92,99,755.43

21,29,825.40
7,80,053.85
6,99,874.15

16,38,567.54
15,46,682.71
5,24,922.67
7,44,079.37
17,57,433.11
7,63,974.00
4,93,159.31
3,24,816.00
55,524.00
1,44,22,784.18
20,60,000.00
12,95,709.38
2,53,303.35
4,26,689.70
7,41,366.78
1,11,027.94
3,65,71,308.80

4.36 Depreciation and Amortization

(Amount in NPR)

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Depreciation of PPE 62,35,232.98 54,56,948.15
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortization of Intangible Asset 4,06,010.00 2,96,400.00
Total 66,41,242.98 57,53,348.15
4.37 Non-Operating Income (Amount in NPR)
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Recovery of loan written off R -
Other income -
(a) Gain From Sale of Fixed assets - 117715
(b) Donation Assets Depreciation Reverse 10,03,414.34 6,86,630.14
(c) Other Rental Income - 34,000.00
Total 10,03,414.34 7,21,807.29

4.38 Non-Operating Expenses

Particulars

2077-78

(Amount in NPR)

2076-77

Loan written off
Redundancy provision
Expenses of restructuring
Other Expenses

Total
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4.39 Income tax Expense

The Microfinance current tax liabilities are calculated using the Income Tax Act, 2058 as applicable in Nepal. Current tax payable (or
recoverable) is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit reported in the statement or profit or loss,
because some item of income or expense are taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible.

(Amount in NPR)

Particular 2077-78 2076-77
Current tax expenses 27,04,06,162.50 24,26,06,075.04
Current Year 26,70,34,252.81 24,26,06,075.04
Adjustment for prior years 33,71,909.69 -
Deferred tax expenses (49,75,338.23) (31,21,392.30)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (49,75,338.23) (31,21,392.30)
Change in Tax Rate - -
Recognition of previously unreconized tax losses - -
Total Tax income expenses 26,54,30,824.28 23,94,84,682.74
4.39.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit (Amount in NPR)

Particular 2077-78 2076-77
Profit before tax 86,85,42,666.47 79,86,33,022.46
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 26,05,62,799.94 23,95,89,906.74
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 4,60,265.34 4,78,457.90
Less: Tax effect on exempt income (43,586.53) -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 10,79,435.84 25,37,710.40
Total income tax expense 26,20,58,914.59 24,26,06,075.04
Effective tax rate 30.17% 30.38%

4.39.2 Tax Settlement Status

The Microfinance’s tax return has been assessed by income tax authorities till FY 2073.74. The income years whose settlement are still
due where the Microfinance has made provision as per self-assessment return and amount of advance tax is as under:

(Amount in NPR)

Income Years Provision for Tax Advance Tax Advance Tax
(as per self-assessment) Paid Net of Provision
2073.74 143,406,886.37 143,406,886.37 -
2074.75 169,419,228.86 173,686,063.97 4,266,835.11
2075.76 212,482,649.91 219,021,555.70 6,538,905.79
2076.77 242,606,075.04 244,651,035.97 2,044,960.93
2077.78 26,70,34,252.81 276,301,097.73 89,64,734.65

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashadh 2078
(As Per NRB Regulation)

Particular 31st Ashad 2078 31st Ashad 2077 Restated
Net Profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 60,31,11,842.20 55,91,48,339.72
Appropriations:
a. General Reserve (16,20,10,071.15) (11,12,43,570.90)

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

c. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate Social Responsibility fund (61,24,402.01) (2,13,55,274.74)
e. Employees Traning Fund
f. Client Protection fund (2,58,85,417.51) (2,13,55,274.74)
j. Other
Staff Welfare Fund (3,06,22,010.03) (2,78,10,892.73)
RSRF Loan Loss Provision Reserve (92,71,892.62)
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Particular

Institutional Strengthening Fund

Reconstruction Fund

Refund From CSR
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment
Regulatory adjustment
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
J.Profit Brought Forward From Previous Period
k. Previous year's declared dividend distributed this year (Share + Cash)

Distributable Profit or Loss

31st Ashad 2078

(2,92,34,200.55)
(1,83,73,206.02)
1,02,39,726.23
33,18,30,368.54

12,30,696.77

(26,58,672.83)

24,70,862.10
71,94,16,173.98
(26,32,18,269.92)
78,90,71,158.63

31st Ashad 2077 Restated

(1,29,11,235.97)
(1,66,86,535.64)
20,60,000.00
34,98,45,555.00

(15,24,680.23)

(45,84,583.80)

(31,86,390.90)
60,43,34,182.91
(22,54,67,909.00)
71,94,16,173.98

5. Additional Information and Disclosures

5.1 Risk Assessment and Management
Risk Management

The Microfinance is exposed to various types of risks including credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation
risks. The objective of the risk management framework at the Microfinance is to ensure that various risks are understood, measured and
monitored and that the policies and procedures established to address these risks are strictly adhered to.

The Board of Directors has oversight on all the risks assumed by the Microfinance. The board level sub-committee (Risk Management
Committee) has been established to facilitate focused oversight of various risks. The committee reviews the risk management policies as
well as the Microfinance’s compliance with NRB Directives.

The Microfinance’s Management Committee comprised during reporting period as following:

Members of Risk Management Committee Designation
1 Mr. Bhupesh Chhatkuli, Director Coordinator
2 Mr. Umesh Lamsal, Director Member
3 Mr. Krishna Prasad Lamichhane, Head of Credit & Program Member Secretary

Risk Governance

Trained supervisors and analysts in the Microfinance examine and monitor the performance and activities of partner cooperatives. In
addition to monitoring the financial condition of the cooperatives, supervisors also review compliance with terms and conditions of loan
agreements and regulations and seek corrective action as and when necessary.

Risk Management Department conducts periodical financial surveillance and monitoring and provides pre-examination analysis and
other analytical support to onsite supervisors and management.

Through its risk management framework, the Microfinance seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise

directly through the Microfinance’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal

consequence of any business undertaking. As part of this framework, the Microfinance uses a set of principles that describe its risk

management culture. The principles of risk management followed by the Microfinance include:

e  Prepare quarterly report of financial position and performance for individual cooperatives and to conclude the trends and
indicators on these.

e  Analyze the financial position and performance indicators on quarterly basis.

° Provide all statistical data required for onsite supervision.

e Anticipating future risks and ensuring awareness of all risks.

@Wﬁmaﬁmmaqﬁaﬁfﬁmw%.
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° Efficient and effective risk management and control to gain competitive advantage.

In order to enhance governance/oversight and to enable earlier detection and mitigation of critical risks, Supervision System (SS) has
been implemented in SKBBL.

Following are the major risk faced by the microfinance and the mitigating measures followed by it:
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the Microfinance in accordance with agreed
terms.

The Microfinance has Credit Policy that, inter alia, consist of areas of lending, eligibility of borrower, loan application format and requirement,
necessary documents for processing loans, risk assessment areas, loan approval authority and other general credit principles. The credit
policy has been formulated by keeping in mind the prudential norms given by NRB.

A standardized loan application form has been in use for facilitating collection and analysis of all the relevant data for evaluating credit
worthiness and proper evaluation of the credit risk of the prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan applications
normally included prospects of the business, management of the cooperative, financial analysis- income statement, balance sheet, cash
flow statement, key financial indicators, key risk and mitigating factors. Further, inspection and supervision are also conducted before
approval of the loan for pre-analysis and after the disbursement of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

Operation Risk

Operational risk is the prospect of loss resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems or policies, employee errors, system
failures, fraud or other criminal activity that disrupts business processes.

Operational risk exposures are managed through a consistent set of management processes that drive risk identification, assessment,
control and monitoring. For the control of operational risk of institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws which
guides the day to day operation.

Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for maintaining an effective control environment across
the organization. Risk control owners have responsibility for the control of operational risk arising from the management of the following
activities: External Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security, Internal
Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information Security and Processing Failure. Operational risks can arise from all business lines and
from all activities carried out by the Microfinance. Operational Risk management approach seeks to ensure management of operational
risk by maintaining a complete process defined for all business segments, products and processes.

Market Risk

Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered under Market Risk Management. Market Risk is
the potential for loss of earnings or economic value due to adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. Institutional exposure to
market risk arises principally from institutional driven transactions.

In line with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, the Microfinance focuses on risk management. In addition to that, Interest
rate risk is assessed at a regular interval to strengthen market risk management. The market risk is managed within the risk tolerances
and market risk limits set by ALCO.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Microfinance either does not have sufficient liquid financial resources available to meet all its
obligations as they fall due, or can only access these financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk is managed by ALCO.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue; increased operating, capital or
regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder value.

Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting the institution’s reputation locally and

has the responsibility to ensure that the Microfinance does not undertake any activities that may cause material damage to the reputation

whaﬁmaqﬁaﬁﬁaﬁwh@
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Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a manner which enables it to maximize
profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and procedures of risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees, Management and
Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the Microfinance’s system of internal control during the year
and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. SKBBL has in-house Internal Audit division that performs internal audit function of
institution. The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the
Company through its program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined
by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits
are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

5.2 Capital Management
i.  Qualitative Disclosure

The microfinance has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework, 2007 (Updated July 2008) as required by
Nepal Rastra Bank. The main objective of this framework is to develop a safe and sound financial system by way of sufficient amount of
qualitative capital and risk management practices. The total equity of the microfinance comprises of paid-up capital, statutory reserves
and other reserves. The microfinance does not have any other complex or hybrid capital instruments. Capital adequacy ratio as on Ashad
end 2078 is 11.33% and 12.58% on core capital and capital fund respectively. Assessment of capital adequacy of microfinance is done on
regular basis taking into considerations the exposure of microfinance. Also, the analysis of possible impact on capital adequacy is being
done on regular basis taking into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of microfinance and impact
in capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management Committee and is summarized in board.
Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done so that unexpected negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of
microfinance. The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which requires board and senior
management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital

requirement with the true risk profile of the microfinance and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the microfinance.

ii. Quantitative Disclosure

Capital adequacy of the microfinance as per regulatory requirement is as follows:
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Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Statement of Capital Fund

At the month end of Ashadh, 2078

Core Capital
Description

Paid up Capital (ordinary shares)
Proposed bonus share

Share premium

Irredeemable preferential share
General Reserve Fund

Accumulated profit/(loss)

Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet
Capital Redemption Reserve Fund
Capital Adjustment Fund

Calls in advance

Other Free Reserves

Deductions:
a Goodwill
b Deferred tax assets
b Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits
c Investment to the company having financial interests
d Fictitious Asset
e Investment on land and building for self use not complying the Directives of NRB
f Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits
g Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time
h Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws

Total Core Capital (A)

(Rs. in ‘000)
Period
Current Previous
12,51,531.00 10,00,229.64
3,12,882.75 2,50,057.36
18,269.71 -
6,59,407.00 4,97,397.00
4,95,812.00 4,84,003.00
1,72,834.00 1,72,834.00
(13,108.38) (11,104.80)
(13,108.38) (11,104.80)
28,97,628.08 23,93,416.20

“
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Supplementary capital

Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan
Additional loan loss provision
Hybrid capital instruments
Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt
Exchange Equalization Fund
Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added automatically)
Investment adjustment Fund
Total Supplementary Capital (B)
Total Capital Fund (A+B)
Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:
Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA)
Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA)

Capital Fund maintained ( in %)

Core Capital maintained (in %)

3,19,761.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
10.00

3,19,771.00

32,17,399.08

20,46,471.92
10,23,235.96
12.58
11.33

G | o

2.82,925.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
10.00

2,82,935.00

26,76,351.20

18,10,721.04
9,05,360.52
11.82
10.57

During the period the microfinance complied with all external imposed capital requirements to which it is subject to.

Compliance with external requirement
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5.3 Classification and Fair value of financial asset and liability

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three levels according to the
observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs during
the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Microfinance recognises transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of observability of
the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation, is not based on
observable market data.

Following is the classification of financial assets & financial liabilities as on 31-03-2078:

Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,85,89,49,877.82 -
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 12,39,60,046.37 -
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions -
Derivative Financial Instruments -
Other Trading Assets -
Loan and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives 23,88,24,45,622.21
Loan & advances to customers 3,20,42,601.54
Investment Securities 57,36,161.00 10,000.00 13,56,78,000.00
Other assets 3,84,43,621.98
Total Assets 1,98,86,46,085.19 10,000.00 24,08,86,09,845.73
Financial Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Due to Bank & Finanacial Institutions 7,10,31,66,638.53
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 12,05,26,835.32
Borrowing 13,09,31,00,221.06
Other liabilities 2,28,87,16,861.41
Total Liabilities - - 22,60,55,10,556.32

5.4 Operating Segment Information

5.4.1 General information
The Microfinance uses following basis for identification of the operating segments:

a) components from which the Microfinance earns revenues and incurs expenses,

b) components whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment
and assess its performance, and

c) components for which discrete financial information is available.

Accordingly, the Microfinance has recognized its area office as its operating segments since the Microfinance performs its business
activities through these components.

Segment revenues are aggregate of interest income reported by the Microfinance under various heads. Segment results are

determined after considering interest costs. Following information are relevant for understanding segment analysis:

1. Interest cost: Interest costs are allocated to respective segments on the basis of segment revenue.
2. Assets: Segment assets consist of carrying amount of property, plant and equipment that is controlled and used by the respective
segment

@Wﬁmaﬁmmaqﬁaﬁfﬁmw%.
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3. Liabilities: Segment liabilities consist of other liabilities including sundry creditors that pertain to the respective segment

4.  Depreciation & Amortization: Depreciation and amortization costs pertaining to assets controlled and used by the segments are

charged to the respective segments

5.4.2 The segmental information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities is presented below:

SN Particulars
a Revenue from external customers
b Intersegment Revenue

¢ Net Revenue

d Interest Revenue

e Interest Expense

f Net Interest Revenue

g Depreciation & Amortization
h Segment Profit / (Loss)

i Other material non-cash items
i Impariment of Assets

k Segment Assets

| Segment Liabilities

FY 2077.78

Butwal Hetauda
26,62,60,584 39,63,79,908
26,62,60,584 39,63,79,908
26,62,60,583.90 | 39,63,79,907.60
9,87,91,981 13,50,57,506
16,74,68,603 26,13,22,402
3,87,595.41 3,36,611.83
16,70,81,008 26,09,85,790
7,01,84,822 9,65,39,431
3,24,40,89,749 | 4,99,18,21,606
35,33,62,416 34,85,34,580

Janakpur
31,80,68,579
31,80,68,579
31,80,68,578.83
10,86,53,156
20,94,15,422
3,74,410.27
20,90,41,012
10,55,48,179
4,26,59,45,191
23,54,66,769

Nepalgunj
21,40,28,500
21,40,28,500

21,40,04,885.12
7,53,06,987
13,86,97,898
3,80,911.60
13,83,16,987
3,90,17,291
2,83,95,99,197
18,56,67,074

(Amount in NPR)

Others
69,48,24,622
69,48,24,622
69,44,24,994
25,40,02,087
44,04,22,907

51,61,714
43,52,61,193
34,42,38,797
9,21,32,31,132
88,74,34,219

Total
1,88,95,62,193
1,88,95,62,193
1,88,91,38,950

67,18,11,717
1,21,78,27,233
66,41,243
1,21,06,85,990
65,45,28,520
24,55,46,86,874
2,01,04,65,058

5.4.3 Measurement of Operating segment profit or loss, asset and liabilities

The Bank has determined segments based on the organizational geographical structure i.e. Area Office wise.

5.4.4 Reconciliation of Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, asset and liabilities

a) Revenue

Particular

Amount in NPR

Total revenue for reportable segment
Other revenue
Elimination of intersegment revenue

Entity’s Revenue

1,88,95,62,192.52

1,88,95,62,192.52

b) Profit or loss

Particular

Amount in NPR

Total profit or loss for reportable segments

Other Profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits
Unallocated amount

Profit before income tax

1,21,06,85,989.92

-34,21,43,323.45
86,85,42,666.47

c) Asset

Particular

Amount in NPR

Total asset for reportable segments
Other Asset
Unallocated amount

Entity’s Asset

24,55,46,86,874.49

1,57,19,42,018.67

26,12,66,28,893.16

d) Liabilities

Particular

Amount in NPR

Total Liabilities for reportable segments

Other Liabilities
Unallocated amount

Entity’s Liabilities

2,01,04,65,058.30

20,59,50,45,498.02

22,60,55,10,5656.32
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5.4.5 Information about product and service

Revenue from each type of product and service described in point no 1(b) above

Revenue generated from following products Amount in NPR
Loan to Cooperatives 1,88,91,38,949.73
Total 1,88,91,38,949.73

5.4.6 Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

a) Domestic 1,88,95,62,192.52
Province 1 23,84,55,623.50
Province 2 31,80,68,579.14
Bagmati Province 60,10,46,888.11
Gandaki Province 8,31,54,729.49
Lumbini Province 48,02,89,083.98
Karnali Province 4,46,52,485.80
Sudar Paschim Province 12,38,94,802.50

b) Foreign -
Total 1,88,95,62,192.52

5.4.7 Information about major customers

The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.
5.5 Share options and share based payment

There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

There is no contingent liabilities and commitment made by the microfinance, Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and
commitments are made on Note 4.26

5.7 Related Party Disclosure

The Microfinance identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24:

1. Directors of the Microfinance and their close family members, if any

2. Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members, if any

3. Promoter Commercial Banks of the Microfinance

4. Promoter Small Farmer Agriculture Cooperative Limited (SFACLs) of the Microfinance
5. Subsidiary of major shareholders

The related party disclosures as presented below:

5.7.1 Promoter Commercial Banks and SFACLs of the Microfinance

2077.78

% of Holding Shares Holding

Particulars

Agriculture Development Bank 2,754,307.77

Nabil Bank 379,565.22
Nepal Bank 151,825.31
231 SFACLs 5,460,821.95
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5.7.2 Transaction with promoter commercial banks and their major shareholders for FY 2077.78

Transaction and balances Agriculture Development Bank Nepal Bank Nabil Bank Nabil Investment
Borrowings 101,831,197.41 300,000,000 462,947,093.29

Interest on borrowings

Other transaction

10,289,769.25 24563055.23 29,916,038.80

5.7.3 Transaction with promoter SFACLs for the FY 2077.78

Name of SFACL
SFACL SHREEANTU
SFACL SAMALBUNG
SFACL Jeetpur
SFACL MAHARANIJHORA
SFACL PRITHBINAGAR
SFACL BAHUNDANGI
SFACL JUROPANI
SFACL PATHARIYA
SFACL DHARAMPUR
SFACL PANCHGACHHI
SFACL KHUDUNABARI
SFACL BAIGUNDHURA
SFACL GHAILADUBBA
SFACL MAHAVARA
SFACL BALUBARI
SFACL MAHESPUR
SFACL KOHAVARA
GAURADAHA SFACL
SFACL Sundarpur
SFACL Letang
SFACL Babiyabirta
SFACL Dulari
Women SFACL Motipur
SFACL Baijanathpur
SFACL Belbari
SFACL Mrigauliya
SFACL Jhorahath
SFACL Pati
SFACL Madhumalla
SFACL Mahendranagar
SFACL Pakali
SFACL Lakhantari
SFACL Madhaharsai
SFACL Chitaha
SFACL Baklauri
SFACL Madheli
SFACL Madhuban
SFACL Dharan
SFACL Deuri
Mahila SFACL Sundarpur Udaypur
SFACL Basaha
SFACL Naktirayapur Rupani Saptari
SFACL Pato Saptari

Loans & Advances

8,33,50,000.00
10,46,37,500.00
12,95,65,000.00
6,99,88,400.00
7,67,07,500.00
5,12,00,000.00
2,17,00,000.00
75,50,000.00
4,06,52,000.00
14,06,00,000.00
6,03,75,000.00
74,75,000.00
4,70,87,500.00
2,02,78,200.00
3,25,50,000.00
5,30,95,000.00
2,00,00,000.00
7,09,97,000.00
5,21,30,000.00
94,25,000.00
3,52,80,000.00
2,61,10,000.00
49,37,500.00
6,65,55,000.00
1,36,28,500.00
2,63,75,000.00
9,07,42,900.00
1,37,87,500.00
2,20,29,500.00
2,08,28,600.00

1,12,50,000.00
1,65,86,500.00
4,02,37,000.00
7,86,43,750.00
2,37,90,000.00
4,56,81,500.00
8,40,65,220.00
2,64,93,055.56
4,06,63,700.00

Interest on Loans & Advances

58,96,415.53
71,21,493.17
1,28,91,376.42
45,76,415.28
52,95,613.52
51,87,890.18
19,96,388.45
4,65,130.75
36,562,245.29
90,26,148.43
49,27,690.69
10,28,186.81
41,13,404.23
19,78,129.25
25,37,049.43
37,60,290.36
11,29,998.38
61,04,232.05
28,81,5607.63
10,49,140.45
26,76,391.11
23,51,655.09
2,76,901.25
48,18,617.87
30,17,249.65
15,78,351.13
73,00,769.86
8,32,482.98
12,67,114.38
12,77,523.84

7,19,564.02
12,38,263.78
30,21,697.85
63,82,490.43
21,49,697.79
29,06,497.16
59,17,497.40
17,76,569.82
22,96,075.02

Other Transaction
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Name of SFACL
SFACL Siswabelhi
SFACL Odraha
SFACL Bakdhuwa
SFACL Hariharpur Saptari
SFACL Terahuta
SFACL Bishnupur
SFACL Bastipur
SFACL Laxmipur Siraha
Balasundari SFACL Bhagwanpur
SFACL Mahanour
SFACL Padaria
SFACL Naktajhij
SFACL Digambarpur Dhanusha
SFACL Shantipur
SFACL Sakhuwa Mehendranagar
SFACL hariharpur Dhanusa
SFACL Govindapur
SFACL Raghunathpur
SFACL Bharatpur
SFACL Shinghyahimadan
SFACL Dhanusha Dham
SFACL Mithileshwor
SFACL Phulgama
SFACL Giddha
SFACL Pushpawalpur
SFACL Ramgopalpur
SFACL Bhangha
SFACL Dhirapur
SFACL Banchauri
SFACL Bisanpur
SFACL Itharwa Kati
SFACL Halkhori
SFACL Shankarpur
SFACL Jabdi
SFACL Haripur Sarlahi
SFACL Laxmipur Sarlahi
SFACL Bhaktipur Sarlahi
SFACL Gaurishankar
SFACL Haripurba Sarlahi
SFACL Naukailwa
SFACL Pidari
SFACL Bagdha
SFACL Kumpur
SFACL Salang
SFACL Chainpur
SFACL Kalleri
SFACL Baireni
SFACL Bhumesthan
SFACL Goganpani
SFACL Jiwanpur

Loans & Advances

3,44,75,000.00
6,86,38,200.00
17,57,500.00
85,25,000.00
18,08,12,900.00
2,91,86,000.00
2,51,00,000.00
75,22,000.00
7,80,44,000.00
7,20,35,500.00
10,77,08,500.00
6,84,37,500.00
4,60,000.00
3,47,08,000.00
1,15,65,000.00
3,60,78,000.00
4,15,37,500.00
8,46,36,450.00
16,29,65,725.00
2,57,48,611.11
3,03,50,000.00
8,23,81,000.00
42,42,500.00
12,20,24,500.00
5,77,02,500.00
1,82,00,000.00
4,96,93,266.67
2,50,00,000.00
3,64,12,500.00
27,84,57,600.00
7,59,40,000.00
9,86,67,000.00
6,26,17,500.00
3,60,50,000.00
3,41,67,750.00
3,06,70,000.00
3,47,30,000.00
12,44,62,500.00
5,60,45,500.00
11,72,75,000.00
21,93,99,375.00
8,60,08,400.00
10,43,12,500.00
5,34,75,000.00
8,00,12,500.00
6,33,00,000.00
3,91,50,000.00

Interest on Loans & Advances
25,43,596.43
47,54,338.48

7.14,415.21
6,59,566.48
97,90,208.07
18,78,551.46
21,98,751.11
8,55,342.11
46,10,067.46
58,60,481.67
92,70,552.91
59,89,145.63
5,11,060.54
35,84,730.00
3,99,947.58
28,13,481.58
40,56,450.42
56,37,583.82
1,30,02,070.82
20,38,502.84
21,82,750.98
51,30,858.94
12,20,032.02
79,82,046.04
42,59,316.83
13,61,882.43
43,87,237.20
9,92,801.69
26,79,992.97
1,87,37,841.58
81,18,519.07
62,84,284.25
56,98,172.86
30,56,525.26
23,14,940.67
26,34,140.65
27,00,662.37
74,73,999.75
51,59,271.06
86,99,850.25
1,30,52,992.05
63,93,311.46
87,26,490.34
31,07,380.69
56,67,371.40
45,56,817.46
22,17,024.58

Other Transaction
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Name of SFACL

SFACL Maidi

SFACL Salyantar
Woman SFACL Kewalpur
SFACL Thakre

SFACL Jyamrung
SFACL Chhatredeurali
SFACL Dhola

SFACL Sunaulabazar
SFACL Dhusa

SFACL Tripureshwor
Krishna SFACL
Muralibhanjyang SFACL
Jiling SFACL
Bageshwori SFACL
SFACL, Raviopi
SFACL, Anekot
SFACL Manahari
SFACL Bajrabarahi
Hadikhola SFACL
Basamadi SFACL
SFACL Santapur
SFACL Kanakpur
SFACL Jetharahiya
SFACL Rangapur

SFACL Shakhuwadhamaura

SFACL Piprarajbada
SFACL Dumarwana
SFACL Fattepur
SFACL Manharwa
SFACL Bhodaha
SFACL Haraiya
SFACL Inaruwasira
SFACL Udayapurghurmi
SFACL Nichuta
SFACL Padampur
SFACL Piple

SFACL Kumroj
SFACL Birendranagar
SFACL Bachhauli
SFACL Sukrangar
SFACL Bhandara
SFACL Meghauli
SFACL Kathar
SFACL Darechowk
SFACL Khairahani
Manakamana SFACL
Sundarbazar SFACL
Sarangkot SFACL
Majhathana SFACL
Begnas SFACL

Loans & Advances
4,18,00,000.00
1,03,75,000.00

10,89,00,000.00
4,90,25,000.00
7,35,75,000.00
3,63,50,000.00
4,82,55,000.00
2,35,75,000.00
4,74,30,000.00
2,29,03,000.00
1,60,05,000.00
5,69,46,000.00
1,86,75,000.00
3,70,00,000.00
4,83,31,500.00
4,83,40,000.00
19,51,98,500.00
12,52,50,000.00
16,80,85,000.00
27,40,11,000.00
24,61,25,000.00
13,563,75,000.00
5,18,25,000.00
12,53,00,000.00
5,03,72,500.00
3,28,75,000.00
4,80,00,000.00
13,13,12,500.00
13,86,25,000.00
5,92,25,000.00
2,69,25,000.00
6,42,70,780.00
11,89,97,500.00
1,12,82,500.00
20,33,37,500.00
27,94,10,000.00
17,25,76,200.00
14,69,03,000.00
5,65,00,000.00
4,21,60,000.00
14,85,06,500.00
12,62,27,500.00
5,13,25,000.00
11,30,00,000.00
4,50,95,910.99
4,03,82,500.00
5,29,50,065.52

13,49,105.14

Interest on Loans & Advances

31,82,566.87
10,00,493.04
64,13,395.65
32,14,788.26
47,72,818.23
29,56,277.11
27,71,563.74
23,27,432.41
23,12,275.93
13,23,713.97
4,85,285.27
39,25,379.11
13,06,733.71
32,27,393.81
21,82,997.86
40,20,404.05
1,12,07,260.91
92,80,193.84
1,15,14,846.12
1,89,64,942.85
2,29,10,586.71
1,26,02,736.39
49,85,181.46
1,14,22,920.00
49,29,647.88
30,88,244.87
27,57,407.23
98,87,356.68
1,23,63,526.85
40,03,457.36
35,26,213.59
65,17,553.64
84,00,812.06
12,26,713.57
1,67,14,978.29
21,74,447.53
2,04,50,489.35
1,66,40,841.19
1,28,34,999.05
31,70,109.68
68,15,835.52
1,26,99,462.19
1,01,82,891.06
56,04,367.58
1,18,88,778.88
44,75,629.21
52,37,169.94
62,30,816.62

5,86,327.90
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Name of SFACL
RAMGHATAR SFACL
Nirmalpokhari SFACL
Dhorfirdi SFACL
PHEDIKHOLA SFACL
DAHATHUM SFACL
NARAYANSTHAN SFACL
BHAKUNDE SFACL
TANGRAM SFACL
PAIYUPATA, SFACL
SFACL Bajung
MALLAJ SFACL
PAKUWA SFACL
SFACL Khilji
SFACL Narpani
SFACL Khanchikot
SFACL Makar
SFACL Agauli
SFACL Ramnagar
SFACL Triveni Sustha
SFACL Banjaria
SFACL Tilakpur
SFACL Daunnedevi
SFACLPanchanagar
SFACL Kumarwarti
SFACL Jahada
SFACL Anandban
SFACL Tikuligadh
SFACL Madhawaliya
SFACL Shankarnagar
SFACL Dudhraksha
SFACL Semlar
SFACL Saljhandi
SFACL Parroha
SFACL Gonaha
SFACL Kerwani
SFACL Gangoliya
SFACL Karahiya
SFACL Devdaha
SFACL Khadwa Bangai
SFACL Motipur
SFACL Buddhi
SFACL Buddhabhumi
SFACL Bhalwad
SFACL Badagaun
SFACLGaudakot
SFACL Argali Palpa
SFACL Khasyauli
SFACL, Bangesal
SFACL Kapurkot
SFACL Urahari

Loans & Advances
6,91,98,220.92
1,72,54,963.47
4,02,95,500.00
2,94,00,000.00

2,78,71,250.00
67,91,666.67
1,31,15,000.00
24,60,000.00
1,36,00,000.00
4,65,00,000.00
1,60,00,000.00
4,01,75,000.00
26,40,00,000.00
4,33,50,000.00
14,66,12,000.00
4,55,26,500.00
1,74,07,500.00
3,39,00,000.00
6,77,62,500.00
18,08,70,000.00
4,46,50,000.00
1,50,00,000.00
10,04,40,000.00
6,25,05,000.00
9,566,50,000.00
8,88,00,000.00
3,59,20,000.00
7,76,15,000.00
4,94,50,000.00
4,68,00,000.00
4,59,04,600.00
13,24,00,000.00
6,78,75,000.00
10,06,25,000.00
2,41,30,000.00
6,04,22,500.00
60,00,000.00
62,55,000.00
3,53,17,500.00
99,50,000.00
8,98,12,500.00
8,08,39,000.00
8,18,75,898.00

Interest on Loans & Advances
54,41,692.59
5,53,781.69
46,68,291.00
10,35,625.60
10,73,427.40
25,410.53
23,31,416.48
2,28,770.21
16,63,946.76
1,37,462.76
5,16,629.96
23,77,401.71
13,64,242.77
59,59,078.58
1,95,19,097.73
36,40,317.10
1,61,37,749.26
57,07,925.65
15,80,408.89
35,561,192.84
64,04,893.49
1,562,21,264.50
37,34,805.38
2,15,774.07
90,88,194.86
56,09,232.32
79,36,285.89
1,14,01,283.33
11,83,576.32
26,98,749.66
65,66,145.40
41,47,501.31
53,38,388.89
47,61,866.36
81,96,024.64
72,41,228.85
93,53,412.95
24,66,125.13
43,26,895.76
2,11,881.58
6,44117.27
21,31,917.31
2,79,105.03
46,87,207.75
47,08,560.38
66,73,545.81

Other Transaction
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Name of SFACL

Loans & Advances

Interest on Loans & Advances

Saudiyar SFACL 5,63,11,500.00 44,47,863.69
SFACL Laxmipur 93,98,764.24 6,02,665.47
SFACL Dhanauri 4,24,27,068.01 45,81,484.77
SFACL, Shreegaun 3,98,14,036.49 34,62,232.51
SFACL Rampur 3,32,30,074.00 42,75,669.90
SFACL Gobardiya 1,12,00,000.00 10,85,634.84
Satbariya SFACL 38,37,864.12 3,73,913.06
SFACL Uttarganga 1,98,58,500.00 17,18,380.12
SFACL Latikoili 4,60,25,000.00 21,30,656.48
SFACL Lekhapharsa 6,09,78,000.00 42,89,757.83
SFACL Mehelkuna 52,37,500.00 4,96,996.31
SFACL Satakhani 11,18,92,000.00 71,17,137.26
SFACL Ramghat - -
SFACL Mahadevpuri 4,51,66,317.85 46,45,759.50
SFACL Naubasta 3,49,10,147.00 30,10,860.10
SFACL Kamdi 4,84,27,251.55 38,34,733.55
SFACL Kachanapur - -
SFACL Puraini 75,00,000.00 5,30,292.69
SFACL Chisapani 6,62,79,278.43 62,81,186.13
Taratal SFACL 23,87,11,240.28 1,72,07,012.92
Sanoshree SFACL 31,81,87,500.00 2,37,06,169.99
SFACL Deudakala 10,26,35,589.27 89,96,168.18
SFACL Padanaha 1,09,00,000.00 6,16,723.72
Mainapokhar SFACL 21,09,02,482.57 1,76,01,756.37
Kalika SFACL 4,64,87,832.87 38,52,744.46
SFACL Neulapur 5,26,82,129.36 56,26,693.71
SFACL Shibapur 2,23,44,816.17 11,91,886.29
Dhodhari SFACL 2,70,21,601.10 10,86,102.44
SFACL Bauniya 3,09,12,500.00 31,19,057.00
SFACL Malakheti 4,40,95,500.00 50,97,118.32
SFACL Shreepur 16,10,35,000.00 1,46,25,683.92
SFACL Pratappur 3,27,75,000.00 23,89,625.89
SFACL Geta 3,71,35,000.00 60,51,621.10
SFACL Daiji 11,43,99,000.00 89,38,646.10
SFACL Suda 14,56,37,500.00 99,22,031.96
SFACL Tribhuwanbasti 13,05,62,500.00 92,78,786.05
SFACL Parasan 10,04,94,500.00 83,18,052.11
SFACL Kalika Ka. 11,92,95,500.00 84,09,144.89
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Other Transaction

5.7.4 Transaction with and payments to directors of Microfinance

The details relating to compensation paid to directors were as follows:

Particulars 2077.78
Meeting Fees 12,84,000
Other expenses 4,36,500
Total 17,20,500

Details of the Board of Directors and their composition, and changes if any, during the period are disclosed in the director’s report
5.7.5 Transaction with and payment to Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities

of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. Related party disclosure of directors is presented in above point. The microfinance
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considers Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to be its KMP. The details relating to the remuneration paid and other facilities provided to Dr.
Shivaram Prasad Koirala, CEO of the Microfinance is as follows:

Dr. Shivaram Prasad Koirala, CEO 34,42,499.50

*Bonus and welfare fund is provided as per prevalent rules and regulations.
5.8 Merger and acquisition
No any Merger and acquisition has taken in the years presented.

5.9 Additional Disclosure of non-consolidated entities.
Not Applicable.

5.10 Events after reporting date
Accounting Policy

The Microfinance monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or non-adjusting events after
the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material
events are discloses in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

Explanatory Notes

There are no material events that has occurred subsequent to 31st Ashadh 2078 till the signing of this financial statement on 2078.08.08.
5.11 Disclosure of effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRS (1st time adoption)

5.11.1 Significant changes from the policies adopted in the past

Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal Accounting Standards and directives
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank) and the adoption of NFRS has been disclosed below.

5.11.2 Reconciliation of Opening Statement of Financial Position as on 31-03-2076

Particular Note GAAP Amount Adjustment Adjusted Opening FS
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,40,39,81,367 - 1,40,39,81,367
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 9,00,00,000 - 9,00,00,000

Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - -

Other Trading Assets - R

Loan and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives 20,15,46,55,843 - 20,15,46,55,843
Loan & advances to customers a 21718,529 21718,529
Investment Securities b 19,11,71,200 7,07,864 19,18,79,064
Current Tax Assets 65,38,906 (0) 65,38,906
Investment Property - -
Property & equipments [¢] 1,93,78,271 (50,80,436) 1,42,97,836
Goodwill and Intangible assets 3,983,920 - 3,938,920
Deferred tax assets d 74,49,476 66,87,962 1,41,37,438
Other assets e 6,66,57,068 (2,17,18,529) 4,49,38,540
Total Assets 21,94,02,26,051 23,15,391 21,94,25,41,442
Liabilities & Equity

Due to Bank & Finanacial Institutions 8,99,65,10,590 - 8,99,65,10,590
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 28,28,660 - 28,28,660

Derivative Financial Instrument - -
Deposits from Customers - -
Borrowing 8,65,10,01,000 - 8,65,10,01,000

Current Tax Liabilities - R
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Particular | Note | GAAP Amount Adjustment Adjusted Opening FS

Provisions - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Other liabilities f 1,86,25,80,880 62,70,104 1,86,88,50,983
Debt Securities Issued - -
Subordinated Liabilities - -

Total Liabilities 19,51,29,21,130 62,70,104 19,51,91,91,234
Equity g 1,00,02,29,426 (21,41,94,514) 78,60,34,912
Share Premium - _
Retained Earnings h 40,03,06,374 20,40,27,809 60,43,34,183
Reserve i 1,02,67,69,122 62,11,992 1,03,29,81,114
Total Shareholders Equity 2,42,73,04,921 (39,54,713) 2,42,33,50,209
Non Controlling Interests
Total Equity 2,42,73,04,921 (39,54,713) 2,42,33,50,209
Total Liabilities & equity 21,94,02,26,051 23,15,391 21,94,25,41,442

Note:

a) Staff Loan reclassification and adjustment for market rate f)  Cash bonus adjusment, employee benifit obligation

b)  Fair valuation of investments adjustment

c) Change in method of depreciation to SLM g) Proposed bonus share reversal

d) Deferred tax recomputation h)  Presented seperately below

e) Deferred Employee Expenditure due to market rate i)  Presented seperately below

adjustment

5.11.3 Reconciliation of Opening Reserve as on 31-03-2076

Particulars \\[o] (=) Other Reserve Retained Earnings
GAAP Amount on 2076/03/31 1,02,67,69,122 40,03,06,374
Impairment on loan and advances
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan
Lease accounting
Measurement of investment securities at fair value a 7,07,864
Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortisation of debt securities issued - -
Deferred tax b 66,87,962
Defined benefit obligation of employees [¢] (1,75,43,499)
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain

Interest income

Other
Proposed bonus share reversed d 21,4194 514
Proposed Cash dividend reversed e 1,12,73,395
Grant Fund transferred to liability -
Change in Method Of Depreciation f (50,80,436)
Donation Assets Depreciation Reverse g (20,21,580) 20,21,580
Transfer to Regulatory Reserve h 75,25,708 (75,25,708)
IFRS amount as on 2076/03/31 1,03,29,81,114 60,43,34,183

Note:

a) Fair valuation of investments e) Proposed cash dividend reversal

b) Deferred tax recomputation f)  Change in method of depreciation to SLM

c) Employee benifit obligation adjustment g) Change in method of depreciation in donation assets

d) Proposed bonus share reversal h) Transfer to regulatory reserve as per NRB guidelines
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5.11.4 Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive statement for the FY 2076.77

Particular Note
Interest income a
Interest expenses
Net interest income
Fees & Commission Income
Fees & Commission Expense
Net Fee & Commission Income
Net Interest, Fee & Commission Income
Net Trading Income
Other Operating Income
Total Operating Income
Impairment (Charge)/reversal for loans & other losses
Net Operating Income
Personnel Expenses b
Other Operating expenses
Depreciation & amortization c
Operating Profit
Non Operating Income d
Non Operating Expense
Profit before income tax
Income Tax Expense
Current tax
Deferred tax e
Net profit for the year
Profit attribute to:
Equity holder of the Financial Instution
Net profit for the year
Earnings per share
Basis EPS
Diluted EPS

Other comprehensive income

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on Revalation

Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets o f foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the period

AS per GAAP

2,26,47,47,229

(1,12,45,43,453)
1,14,02,03,776

1,14,02,03,776

6,61,711

1,14,08,65,487

(12,35,33,682)

1,01,73,31,805

(17,06,60,786)
(4,71,34,088)
(55,69,493)
79,39,67,437
12,01,166

79,51,68,603
(23,89,50,748)
(24,26,06,075)
36,565,327
55,62,17,855

55,62,17,855

Adjustment
(32,52,237)
(32,52,237)
(32,52,237)
(32,52,237)
(32,52,237)
(8,75,396)
1,83,855
(39,43,778)
4,79,358
(34,64,420)
5,33,935
5,33,935
(23,96,551)

(23,96,551)

NFRS
2,26,79,99,466
(1,12,45,43,453)
1,14,34,56,013
1,14,34,56,013
6,61,711
1,14,41,17,724
(12,35,33,682)
1,02,05,84,042
(16,97,85,390)
(4,71,34,088)
(57,53,348)
79,791,215
7,21,807
79,86,33,022
(23,94,84,683)
(24,26,06,075)
31,21,392
55,91,48,340

55,91,48,340

(3,25,318)

(45,51,987)
14,63,192
55,57,34,226

55,57,34,226

Note:

a) Interest recognised on accrual basis
b) Employee benefit obligation adjustment and amortization of
deferred employee expenditures
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c¢) Change in method of depreciation to SLM

e) Deferred tax recomputation

d) Change in method of depreciation in donation assets




5.11.5 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position as on 31-03-2077

Particular Note
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions
Derivative Financial Instruments
Other Trading Assets
Loan and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives
Loan & advances to customers a
Investment Securities b
Current Tax Assets
Investment Property
Property & equipments o]
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets d
Other assets e
Total Assets
Liabilities & Equity
Due to Bank & Finanacial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative Financial Instrument
Deposits from Customers
Borrowing
Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Other liabilities f
Debt Securities Issued
Subordinated Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity [¢]
Share Premium

Retained Earnings h
Reserve i

Total Shareholders Equity
Non Controlling Interests

Total Equity

Total Liabilities & equity

GAAP Amount
2,44,86,39,756
12,13,80,526

20,82,34,80,672

89,11,71,200
20,44,960

1,90,58,248
8,60,632
1,11,04,803
6,32,42,259
24,38,09,83,055

8,29,19,01,243

17,44,796

11,08,05,97,044

2,06,40,07,287

21,43,82,50,369
1,25,02,86,782

48,40,03,174
1,20,84,42,730
2,94,27,32,686

2,94,27,32,686
24,38,09,83,055

Qo’"mmasuﬁaaa

Adjustment

(2,77,55,029)
(3,82,546)
52,64,291

(76,17,219)
2,62,13,895

(52,76,608)

(73,48,073)
(73,48,073)
25,00,57,356

(23,54,13,000)
(1,25,72,891)
20,71,465

20,71,465
(52,76,608)

200b/bT

NFRS
2,44,86,39,756
12,13,80,526
20,82,34,80,672
2,77,55,029
89,15,53,746
20,44,960
1,37,93,957
8,60,632
1,87,22,022
3,80,28,363
24,38,62,59,664

8,29,19,01,243
17,44,796

11,08,05,97,044
2,07,13,55,360
21,44,55,98,443
1,00,02,29,426
71,946,174
1,22,10,15,621
2,94,06,61,221

2,94,06,61,221
24,38,62,59,664

Note:

a) Staff Loan reclassification and adjustment for market rate
b) Fair valuation of investments

c¢) Change in method of depreciation to SLM

d) Deferred tax assets recomputation

e) Deferred Employee Expenditure due to market rate adjustment and accrual basis adjustment on interest income

f)  Cash bonus adjusment, employee benifit obligation adjustment
g) Proposed bonus share reversal
h) Presented seperately below

i)  Presented seperately below
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5.11.6 Reconciliation of Reserve as on 31-03-2077

Particulars Note Other Reserve Retained Earnings
GAAP Amount on 2077/03/31 1,20,84,42,730 48,40,03,174
Impairment on loan and advances
Openning
Current Year
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan
Openning
Current Year
Lease accounting
Openning
Current Year
Measurement of investment securities at fair value
Openning a 7,07,864 -
Current Year a (2,27,723) (97,595)
Revaluation of property & equipment
Openning
Current Year
Recognition of investment property
Openning
Current Year
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Openning
Current Year

Deferred tax

Openning b 66,87,962
Current Year b 9,29,257
Defined benefit obligation of employees c (31,86,391) (1,73,22,596)

Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Openning
Current Year

Interest income

Openning - -
Current Year d - 25,41134
Other
Proposed bonus share reversed
Openning -
Current Year e 25,00,57,356
Proposed Cash dividend reversed
Openning -
Current Year f 1,31,60,914
Grant Fund transferred to liability
Openning -
Current Year -

Change in Method Of Depreciation g (52,64,291)
Donation Assets Depreciation Reverse h (15,42,222) 15,42,222
Transfer to Regulatory Reserve i 1,68,21,363 (1,68,21,363)

Reserve IFRS amount as on 2077/03/31 1,22,10,15,621 71,94,16,174

Note:

a) Fair valuation of investments f)  Proposed cash dividend reversal

b) Deferred tax recomputation g) Change in method of depreciation to SLM

c) Employeee benefit obligation adjustment h)  Change in method of depreciation in donation assets
d) Interest adjustment for accrual basis i)  Transfer to regulatory reserve as per NRB guidelines

e) Proposed bonus share reversal
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5.11.7 Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive statement for the FY 2077.78

Particular
Interest income
Interest expenses
Net interest income
Fees & Commission Income
Fees & Commission Expense
Net Fee & Commission Income
Net Interest, Fee & Commission Income
Net Trading Income
Other Operating Income
Total Operating Income
Impairment Charge/ (reversal) for loans & other losses
Net Operating Income
Personnel Expenses
Other Operating expenses
Depreciation & amortization
Operating Profit
Non Operating Income
Non Operating Expense
Profit before income tax
Income Tax Expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Net profit for the year
Profit attribute to:
Equity holder of the Financial Instution
Net profit for the year
Earnings per share
Basis EPS
Diluted EPS

Other comprehensive income

Gains/(losses) on Revalation
Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the period

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Note

a

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

AS per GAAP
1,89,05,52,879
(67,18,11,717)
1,21,87,41,162

1,21,87,41,162

4,23,243
1,21,91,64,405
(10,57,15,994)
1,11,34,48,411
(17,80,01,537)
(5,03,57,130)
(53,97,483)
87,96,92,261
11,50,527

0
88,08,42,788
(26,84,02,588)
(27,04,06,163)
20,03,575
61,24,40,201

61,24,40,201

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets o f foreign operation)

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Qo’"mmmuﬁaaa 7
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Adjustment
(14,13,929)
(14,13,929)
(14,13,929)
(14,13,929)
0
(14,13,929)
(94,95,320)
(12,43,760)
(1,21,53,009)
(1,47,113)

(1,23,00,122)
29,71,763

29,71,763
(63,56,595)

(63,56,595)

NFRS
1,88,91,38,950
(67,18,11,717)
1,21,73,27,233
1,21,73,27,233
4,23,243
1,21,77,50,476
(10,57,15,994)
1,11,20,34,482
(18,74,96,857)
(5,03,57,130)
(66,41,243)
86,75,39,252
10,03,414
86,85,42,666
(26,54,30,824)
(27,04,06,163)
49,75,338
60,31,11,842

60,31,11,842

41,92,415

35,29,803
(23,16,665)
60,85,17,395

60,85,17,395

Note:

a) Interest recognised on accrual basis and amortization of deferred employee expenditures

b) Employee benefit obligation adjustment and amortization of deferred employee expenditures

whaﬁmaqﬁaﬁﬁaﬁwh@

c¢) Change in method of depreciation to SLM
d) Deferred tax recomputation
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5.11.8 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position as on 31-03-2078

Particular Note
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions
Derivative Financial Instruments
Other Trading Assets
Loan and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives
Loan & advances to customers
Investment Securities
Current Tax Assets
Investment Property
Property & equipments o]
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets d
Other assets e
Total Assets
Liabilities & Equity
Due to Bank & Finanacial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative Financial Instrument
Deposits from Customers
Borrowing
Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Other liabilities f
Debt Securities Issued
Subordinated Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity g
Share Premium
Retained Earnings h
Reserve i
Total Shareholders Equity
Non Controlling Interests

Total Equity

Total Liabilities & equity

GAAP Amount
1,85,89,49,878
12,39,60,046

23,88,24,45,622
13,68,49,200
92,66,845
2,42,20,820
10,02,672
1,31,08,378
7,01,92,240
26,11,99,95,701

7,10,31,66,639
12,05,26,835

13,09,31,00,221
2,27,95,43,092
22,59,63,36,787
1,66,44,13,728
1,82,69,714
49,568,11,642
1,44,51,63,831
3,52,36,58,914

3,52,36,58,914
26,11,99,95,701

Adjustment

(3,20,42,602)
(45,74,961)

65,08,070
(82,72,317)
3,17,48,618

(66,33,192)

(91,73,770)
(91,73,770)
31,28,82,746

(29,32,59,516)
(1,70,82,652)
25,40,577

25,40,577
(66,33,192)

NFRS
1,85,89,49,878
12,39,60,046

23,88,24,45,622
3,20,42,602
14,14,24,161
92,66,845
1,77,12,750
10,02,672
2,13,80,695
3,84,43,622
26,12,66,28,893

7,10,31,66,639
12,05,26,835

13,09,31,00,221
2,28,87,16,861
22,60,55,10,556
1,25,15,30,982
1,82,69,714
78,90,71,159
1,46,22,46,483
3,52,11,18,337

3,52,11,18,337
26,12,66,28,893

Note:

a) Staff Loan reclassification and adjustment for market rate
b)  Fair valuation of investments

c) Change in method of depreciation to SLM

d) Deferred tax assets recomputation

e) Deferred Employee Expenditure due to market rate adjustment and accrual basis adjustment on interest income

f)  Cash bonus adjustment, employee benifit obligation adjustment
g) Proposed bonus share reversal

h) Presented separately below

i)  Presented separately below

@Wﬁmaﬁmmaqﬁaﬁfﬁmw%.




5.11.9 Reconciliation of Reserve as on 31-03-2078

Particulars
GAAP Amount on 2078/03/31
Impairment on loan and advances
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Lease accounting
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Measurement of investment securities at fair value
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Revaluation of property & equipment
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Recognition of investment property
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Deferred tax
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Interest income
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Other
Proposed bonus share reversed
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Proposed Cash dividend reversed
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Grant Fund transferred to liability
Openning
FY 2076.77
Current Year
Change in Method Of Depreciation
Donation Assets Depreciation Reverse
Transfer to Regulatory Reserve
Reserve IFRS amount as on 2078/03/31

Note

O T T T

Other Reserve

1,44,51,63,831

7,07,864
(2,27,723)
29,34,691

(7,15,629)

(13,95,109)
1,57,78,477
1,46,22,46,483
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Retained Earnings
49,58,11,642

(97,595)
12,567,725

66,87,962
9,29,257
6,55,098

(2,49,25,754)

25,41,134
(22,47,150)

31,28,82,746

1,64,67,513

(65,08,070)
13,95,109
(1,567,78,477)
78,90,71,159
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Note:
a) Fair valuation of investments
b) Deferred tax recomputation
c) Employee benefit obligation adjustment
d) Interest adjustment for accrual basis
e) Proposed bonus share reversal
f) Proposed cash dividend reversal
g) Change in method of depreciation to SLM
h) Change in method of depreciation in donation assets
i) Transfer to regulatory reserve as per NRB guidelines

5.11.10 Reconciliatizn of Statement of Cash Flows as on 31-03-2078

For the year ended (the latest period presented under previous GAAP)

Particulars Previous GAAP Effect of Transition to NFRSs Amount as per
Net cash flows from operating activities a (1,65,26,39,365.42) (94,25,50,612.06) (71,00,88,753.36)
Net cash flows from investing activities 81,85,65,625.15 - 81,85,65,625.15
Net cash flows from financing activities a 94,61,15,775.88 94,25,50,612.06 35,65,163.82
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 11,20,42,035.61 (0.00) 11,20,42,035.61
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 27,30,85,453.89 (0.00) 27,30,85,453.89
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 38,51,27,489.50 (0.00) 38,51,27,489.50
Note:
a) Reclassification of Borrowing from Financing Activities to Operating Activities

5.12 Proposed Dividend

The Microfinance has proposed 25 % of Bonus share on Share capital as on Ashad end 2078 which amounts to NPR 31,28,82,745.52
and 1.315789474% of Cash dividend (for dividend tax on bonus share) on Share capital as on Ashad end 2078 which amounts to NPR
1,64,67,512.92 The Dividend is proposed for approval from upcoming AGM.

CA. Mandipa Dahal Dr. Nav Raj Simkhada Dr. Shiv Ram Prasad Koirala Khem Bahadur Pathak CA. Khagendra Bhattarai

Senior Manager Deputy CEO CEO Chairman For Khagendra & Associates
Finance & HR Division Chartered Accountants
Umesh Lamsal Rabindra Yadav Bhupesh Chhatkuli Pratap Subedi Chadani Dhakal Mahendra Prasad Shrestha

Director Director Director Director Director Director

Date: 2078/08/08
Place: Kathmandu
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